
Guam Legislature Clerks Office 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Faith San Nicolas [faith@judiwonpat.com] 
Wednesday, January 23, 2013 11 :30 AM 
clerks@guam legislature .org 

Subject: Fwd: CLTC mtg pkg of Jan17.13 
Attachments: Transmittal - Jan17.13 Cl TC Board mtg pkg.pdf; Jan17.13 mtg pkg.pdf 

1123/2013 1118/2013 
Transmittal of Chamorro Land 

Chamorro Land Trust 
Trust Commission Board Meeting 32-13-35 

Commission 
package of January 17, 2013 

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Speaker Won Pat <speaker@judiwonpat.com> 
Date: Wed, Jan 23, 2013 at 11:27 AM 
Subject: Fwd: CLTC mtg pkg of Jan17.13 
To: Faith San Nicolas <faith@judiwonpat.com> 

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Teresa Topasna <teresa.topasna@cltc.guam.gov> 
Date: Tue, Jan 22, 2013 at 12:48 PM 
Subject: CLTC mtg pkg of Jan17.13 
To: governor@guam.gov 
Cc: Speaker Won Pat <speaker@judiwonpat.com> 

Hafa Adai, attached pursuant to P.L. 31-233 is the CLTC Board meeting package of January 17, 2013. 

Teresa T. Topasna 

Ufisinan I Etmas Ge'helo'Gi Liheslaturan Guahan 
Office of Speaker Judith T. Won Pat Ed.D. 
Kumiten ldukasion yan Laibirihan Publeko 
Committee on Education and Public Libraries & Women's Affairs 

155 Hesler Place, Suite 201, Hagatna, Guam 96910 
Tel: (671) 472-3586 Fax: (671) 472-3589 

www.guamlegislature.com I speaker@judiwonpat.com 

1 



Faith San Nicolas 
Staff .A.ssistant 
Office of Speaker Judith T. Won Pat, Ed.D. 
(T)4 72-3586 
155 Hesler Place Hagatna, Guam 96910 

2 



Edi& B01.ll Calvo 
Govemor of Gullhan 

Chamorro Land Trust Commission 
(Kumision Inangokkon Tano' Chamoru) 

P.O. Box 2950 f/agtlrna, G11tllla11 96932 Phone: 649-5263 exr. 651 Fax: 649-5383 

January 18, 2013 

TO: Honorable Eddie Baza Calvo 
Ray Tenorio Governor of Guam 

LleuJenant Govemor of Gullhan 

Commission Members 

Michael J.B. Borja 
Acting Chairman 

David J. Matanane 
Vice-Chairman 

Amanda L.G. Sa/l/os 
Co111111issioner 

(Vacatll) 
Co111111issioner 

(Vaca11t) 
Co111111issioner 

Mollle Maft1as 
Administrative Director 

Rev. 0912112012 

FR: Monte Mafnas 
Administrative Director 

RE: CLTC Board meeting of January 17, 2013 

Pursuant to Public Law 31 -233, transmitted herewith is the Chamorro Land 
Trust Commission Board meeting package of January 17, 2013. 

Please do not hesitate to contact 649-5263 ext. 651 if you have any 
estions. 

cc: Honorable Judith T. Won Pat, Ed.D. 
Speaker, 32nd Guam Legislature 



Eddlt Ba:.a OJ.lvo 
Governor o/Gimhan 

Ray Tt norlo 
lloutenant Govemor of Guahon 

Commission Memhen 

M lchae/J.B. Borja 
Acting Chairman 

David J . Matana11e 
Vice-Chairman 

Ama11da L G. Sa11tos 
Commissioner 

(Vacant) 
Commissioner 

(Vaca111) 
Commissioner 

Mollle Mafnas 
Admlnistra1/ve Director 

Rev. 0912112012 

Chlimorro Land Trust Commission 
(Kumision Inangokkon Tano' Chamoru) 

P.O. Box 2950 Hagt1111r1, Gud//011 96932 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
AGENDA 

P//0111?: 649-5263 ext. 651 Fax: 649-5383 

Department of Land Management Conference Room 
3rd Fir. ITC Building , Tamuning 

Thursday, January 17, 2013; 1pm 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

Ill. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. December 20, 2012 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
1. Bert Jacosalem status 
2. Layao status - utilities terminated; awaiting filing of motion to finalize 

eviction 
3. International Bridge & Construction Marianas - In-kind consideration 

using concrete panels for schools 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
1. John Rios - Request to lease portion of Lot 7150, Yigo for an antennae 

site 
2. Guam Auto Sports - Request to lease facilities at Guam International 

Raceway Park for auto sports 
3. JMD Global Micronesia Corporation - Request to lease CL TC property 

for manufacturing purposes and to construct a model house on Tract 
10123, Yigo 

4. KoKo Recycling - status of commercial license in Barrigada 

VII. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
1. CL TC's subdivision of 83 (929sqm or 164 - 5,000sqft) house lots 

tentatively approved by GLUC 
2. Legal Counsel Contract 

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 



Eddie Raza Ca/l·o 
G111•c mrir r1/' G11ulta11 

Ra.1• Tn1t1rio 
U1·m~11am Om•••mnr of' G111Jltr111 

Micfraol J B. Borja 
At ri1111 Chairmcm 

David J. Ma/a11a11e 
\lic·l'·Cltaimw11 

Amrmdu L.G. Sn11/os 
Co111111is.~i1111t r 

(Vac11111) 
Co111111is.tim1er 

( Va1:a111) 
C'rm1111issione r 

Monte Maf11as 
Ad111i11ist1'fllive Dil'ei·wr 

RPI'. 0912112012 

Chamorro Land Trust Commission 
(Kumision lnangokkon Tano' Chamoru) 

P.O. Bo.-c 2950 Hagall1a, G11dha11 96912 Pho11e: 649-5263 11.xt. 651 Fax: 649-5383 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
Department of Land Management Conference Room 

3rd Fir., ITC Building, Tamuning 
Thursday, December 20, 2012; 1 :10pm - 3:18pm 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 1 :1 Opm by Acting Chairman Michael Borja. 

II. ROLL CALL 
Present were Acting Chairman Michael Borja, Vice-Chairman David 
Matanane, Commissioner Amanda Santos, Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo 
and Administrative Director Monte Mafnas. 

Ill. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. November 15, 2012 
Acting Chairman Michael Borja made the correction on the last line of page 33 
where the speaker was misidentified. Instead of Oscar Calvo it should read 
Monte Mafnas. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane moved to approve the minutes of 
November 15, 2012 with corrections. Commissioner Amanda Santos 
seconded the motion. There were no objections, MOTION PASSED. 

2. December 6, 2012 
Vice-Chairman David Matanane made the correction on page 5, 5 th paragraph 
to strike out the word "not". Sentence should read "Even if you change the 
name you're still a separate individual because a corporation is an individual". 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane moved to approve the minutes of 
December 6, 2012 with corrections. Commissioner Amanda Santos 
seconded the motion. There were no objections, MOTION PASSED. 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS - None. 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
1. Approval of Okkodo Resolution 
Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - They're adding the conditions that the 
Board requested. Mr. Chairman and Vice-Chairman will be signing that 
resolution okay. 

2. Feliciano Layao and Jesus Quintanilla Eviction Notice 
Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - That's just to present to the Board 
that we have done our due diligence and we signed it off and in addition to 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

1 I 35 



that I requested that GPA and GWA terminate their utilities because we own the land and 
we have the right to do it. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - So that has already been done? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - That's been done. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - There was a legal issue on that and they're still 
confronting that right? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes and we'll be addressing the legal issue very 
soon. 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
1. Ignacio F. Santos - Request to provide public access easement 
Representatives present: Bill Beery (developer) & Ike Santos (representing the applicant) 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Is that Golden Gate? 

Ike Santos - Yes. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - That's a corporate name, right? 

Ike Santos - Yes. Actually we've been here before actually to request for a widening of 
this 40 foot entrance and also to include an area for a bus stop. This area is part of our 
project which is the SongSong Subdivisions and the Guam Land Use Commission had 
actually based on other future growth in this area I think we kind of touch a little bit on 
providing an access road up here. The Guam Land Use Commission required us now 
and it's also part of the conditions. After the hearing the Chairman of the Guam Land Use 
Commission required that we have a round table meeting and this is back again in March 
regarding the future growth of this area. We sat down with the Department of Public 
Works, the Mayor of Vigo and also the developer to the north TRI and I guess other 
Government agencies to meet that. Since after that round table meeting it was included 
that we put this 40 foot easement in and actually this map was prepared by Frank Castro 
who also prepared the 60 foot that was granted by you guys also to support this group this 
development back here. So we're now at this position where it is now not only a part of 
the required conditions of this project but also that we need to come in and request that 
we sort of put this 40 foot easement that connects this one here to here. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - That's from the Land Use Commission? 

Ike Santos - Yes from the Land Use Commission and also from the round table meeting 
that we had. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - We have discussed this before right? That particular 
easement is encumbering CL TC property right? 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

2 I 35 



Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - To my understanding on that Mr. Santos was okay 
we gave you to widen the road up there which is the upper portion and that was basically 
and if I'm not mistaken I think you said that you guys were going to go ahead and widen 
that straight down. 

Ike Santos - Although it was not part of our initial request when we came in here but 
during discussions while we were talking we thought about why not put this in here 
because of the waste water line, sewer and water were all at this point. So it made great 
sense to bring it in and of course to help service this area as well. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - But that was initial if I'm not mistaken that that was 
the whole concept was to run that to service that because it also helps the Chamorro 
Land Trust in the upper portions. And that was the rational thing that we at least in the 
Board we approved that. 

Bill Beery- We discussed it but we hadn't mapped it so now we've mapped it and we 
need the, we're kind of wanting to make it official. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - Very good so we're not on the same page right? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - What's the width that you guys propose? 

Ike Santos - This is 40 feet. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - So the one on top is that also an egress? 

Ike Santos - This was approved by you guys. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - For Paradise Meadows. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - That's not an egress is it? 

Ike Santos - This is access easement to service these lots back here. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - But your request was to get the utilities from the bottom 
there. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - It goes out into the Marine Drive area and also that 
was but I know that we discussed on that also to provide the infrastructure there at the 
same token to provide for the Chamorro Land Trust in the upper portion in that way in the 
future. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - So this is 40 and what is this 60? 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

3 I 35 



Ike Santos - Yes, the 60 was for the bus stop so that there is added protection for 
improvements. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - So what do you actually need from the Board today if 
I may ask? 

Ike Santos - The reason I guess why we're here is to get approval for this actually this 
easement. We talked about I know but this is just to reconfirm it. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes we basically tentatively agreed on it 
hypothetically but Ed (OLM staff) can we show them our drawing. We're still a work in 
progress we haven't finalized it but it's good that they bring their concern in. What we had 
drawn from OLM side is this. When we relocate the road we can service two lots. The 
way it's designed now it serves one lot to the eastern side. But if we tweak the road 
where the utilities will be installed it will serve back to back to back. 

Bill Beery- We're here to accommodate you guys admittedly. No sense doing something 
that's not going to help because that was the agreement before. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Right and will that affect your subdivision if we 
tweak it to that? 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - Whose property is that? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - On the ingress to the right is eastern portion, 
CL TC. From the easement to the left western portion is theirs. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Is this eventually going to be a road? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Mr. Director, when you tweak that out basically quote 
me if I'm wrong on this is that is quite a big piece of property and once you subdivide that 
property it will serve on the inner part is that the whole concept? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - That's the intent yes. Because see the highest 
and best use for us is we put this access here a little bit more easterly that way when the 
road is in place it serves two lots. Today as you look at this it only affects this lot. That is 
my fault for redesigning but..(interrupted). 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - No but the spacing also would accommodate lots 
that..(interrupted). 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - That's exactly why. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - Most of it is ours. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

4 I 35 



Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - What it prevents us here is in the future it's almost 
like it's a landlocked issued. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - What are we trying to do here today? Just get this 
concept of land and it would be a right of way easement? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - A road. 

Bill Beery- And we've agreed to do that 40 foot wide at our expense put in a road. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Does it include sewer? 

Bill Beery - Not sewer but we were going put in a stub. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - We can all work collaboratively we can reduce 
the expense number two. Number one, provide CL TC with the stub ups. 

Ike Santos - I have another question actually on the layout of the map and this is to no 
offense I know this is just a concept did land survey have any review of this? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - That's where it came from. 

Ike Santos - So survey has no problems with it? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes. 

Bill Beery - Now our intent is to run this 40 feet inside Chamorro Land Trust next to our 
property but in your property. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Okay but your commitment is from point A to 
point B. 

Bill Beery - That's right. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Regardless if we tweak it and brought it in you're 
still committed. 

Bill Beery- We're still committed. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Very good. 

Bill Beery - The only thing that would be nice is to do something besides the double 90 
there but you know if that's possible. It kinds of soften that .. (interrupted). 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

5 I 35 



Edgar Taguiam (OLM staff) - I have a concern on that one where it's going to be on the 
Government side because this one here is already a documented easement so that 
becomes 80 feet if we're going give another 40. 

Bill Beery- We were going to eliminate that part. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - It will be up to the Commission in their wisdom to 
implement whatever they want. Today that's a tentative drawing as provide by Golden 
Gate Services and the other alternative is what I propose. So whatever is clever, 
whatever the Board wants to implement. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Actually I like the one where you tweak in there 
because it serves its purpose in the future. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - It saves money Commissioner Calvo as opposed 
to a straight line. I can understand Chairman Borja you know it may cause an accident I 
don't know. I'm just saying that it's a secondary if not a thirdly road therefore people 
should reduce their speed. If anything we can put a fence at the end of the property line. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - It's a thoroughfare that's not going to be wide enough. 
You're going to see people park in there outside their houses or lots on the narrow roads. 
What you're doing on this map on what I see is you're connecting that easement that 
we're looking at its connecting two major roads coming off of Marine Drive into these 
subdivisions. 

Bill Beery - That's correct. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - I just see it simply as a clean plan and put it straight 
forth as far as accessing the area. Now I understand where we're coming from here 
where we want to be able to provide some sort of the infrastructure into those lots but if 
that road is going to service let's say underground utilities like sewer and water and you 
said the connections you're going to have we're going to have the ability to connect into it 
can then force it out. And let's say there's another road you do have a road coming off of 
there and it comes through the back or do it some other way. But what that ends up 
happening here I believe is that you have a thoroughfare going through housing area and 
that becomes especially if this place is going to be as built up as I think it could be you 
have two major inputs coming in and for the thoroughfare to drive through a narrow 
residential street is going to be pretty risky. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Ed what's the distance and approximately from 
that major thoroughfare of ingress, egress to here? Six hundred so it's about maybe a 
150, 200 feet. 

Bill Beery- Well this is 200 and this is 150. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

6 j 35 



Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Okay so 350 feet so one-half. It's only 350 feet 
long that's why the impact is not as great although I recognize Mr. Chairman what you're 
saying. 

Bill Beery- Land Management was pushing this for safety and access and all that. I'd be 
a little bit concerned about the thoroughfare going through Chamorro Housing then. I'm a 
little worried about that. It may be it does the same thing that we're trying to do but I think 
maybe this can get used a lot. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - You'll have school busses trying to transit through 
housing is going to be pretty tough, emergency vehicles and stuff because those are two 
major inputs right off Marine Drive. I believe in one case you can't even make a left turn 
out of one of these exits. 

Bill Beery- They can here, we need to tie into this because we only have right turn out 
and right turn in. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - They're working on the light right up there. 

Bill Beery - Up here this is going between Paradise Meadows and ourselves. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - So there's a plan for a light up there then it will become 
a major thoroughfare. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Point well taken Mr. Chairman, I'm just saying my 
fiduciary responsibility is trying to save the money because it will be incurred by us. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - But it's feeding through, it's feeding up to the edges of 
the lot where they can kind of feed in where there wasn't anything before. I just don't 
think having the road go through there is wise. 

Bill Beery - And because you guys are helping us the developer we agreed to help with 
water service and sewer up to this point at our expense. You know just to aid and abet 
the development so we're here to help. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - We appreciate that Mr. Beery. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - The assistance on that water line on what they're 
doing will be easier for this portion in the future to interconnect to where the next lots. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - But Mr. Chairman Borja is zoned in and confident 
that that's the right thing to do then it will be up to the wisdom of the Board. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Just hypothetically if we did this you guys were 
tweaking in how many feet? 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

7 I 35 



Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - 250 feet approximately. 

Ike Santos - From here to here is 131 feet. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - No but the width of the road. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - The same. 

Ike Santos - It would be 40 feet. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - And that includes also the easements on the utilities. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - But again this is a tentative map that we're 
presenting at DLM's collaborative effort. We're just trying to save money as we go 
forward. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - So that lot, that strip is called Lot 7128-REM-2R/W is 
that what it's called? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes. It's all tentative now it's not finalized. 

Bill Beery- Oh no we need, somewhere in here you guys get to sign too. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - You know eventually I want to connect all roads 
into our lots so you guys you know I want to start connecting road to road not leave gaps 
anymore. You know that's in the future. 

Bill Beery- This is really good for you guys here. I think this is very good for you too 
because it allows access. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - I think so too. Looking long range if anyone has driven 
on the back roads of that area in Yigo it's really, it was just bull cart trails that were paved 
and so as a result you got all these dog legs everywhere and you just kind look at the sun 
as a reference point to see which way you're going to end up turning too. 

Ike Santos - In terms of utilities as well too it's cost wise it's better to go 
straight.. (interrupted). 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Straight and then you can feed off of it. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - I would rather go with that straight road too anyway. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - Which part of the infrastructure the water, power, which 
side of the road are you going to run it? 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

BI 35 



Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - If this is going to run down here the infrastructure the 
water and power for example okay would it be possible for you guys to do a T here? 

Bill Beery- We're going to give you the stub outs in the water and sewer. Power, no we 
can't do power. For water and sewer we'll have stub outs so you can tie into it. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - So gravity flow, no pressure. 

Ike Santos - No lift station. 

Bill Beery - No force main, no pump. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - So the discussion here is on Lot 7128-REM-2R/W which 
is an easement stretching through Lot 7128. Do we have a motion to approve this piece 
of property as a public easement for this project? 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - Let me get it straight Mr. Chairman, we're discussing 
two (inaudible), one straightaway and the other one is for an angle on this proposal. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - But the discussion is focused back to just what had just 
happened. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - What is being presented with us. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - On dash 1 R/W and dash 2R/W okay so we just 
might as well quantify both rights of way. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - The motion will be to approve the Lot 7128-REM-1 
and -2R/W to approve this lot for easement access. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - So moved Mr. Chair. 

Commissioner Amanda Santos - I second it. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - The motion is to approve Lot 7128-REM-2R/W to 
allow this piece of property for easement use for this construction project by the 
SongSong Hills Subdivision Developers. Any other discussions or objections to 
the motion? Since there is no objection to the motion the motion is passed. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Mr. Beery and Mr. Santos the question is this we 
are not going to see a Gil Baza and Gil Breeze subdivision, correct? 

Bill Beery - No of course not. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I just want to go on record. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

9 I 35 



2. Land Exchange on Oka Point with Del Carmen and Sauget 
Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Because of the public necessity of Guam 
Memorial Hospital this is the map okay, this is our subject lot that belongs to Chamorro 
Land Trust which contains an area of 22 acres or roughly 90,000 square meters fronting 
Ferdinand Magellan all the way to the cliff line. What we're trying to get and I apologize 
for not having the map is four house lots adjacent to this road here the Ferdinand 
Magellan and across the emergency area so there's like 13,000 square meter lots. Lot 
number 1 on that block belongs to Dr. Sauget. Lots 2, 3 and 4 belongs to Eddie Del 
Carmen. So it consists about 1 acre of property. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Those vacant lots? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - The vacant lots that has big boulders where it's 
been trashed and illegal parking and most of all possible nuisance suit because 
sometimes the patients walking around with the IVs go inside there, traverse in there to 
smoke. I've met with Del Carmen kids and they hypothetically agreed for the relocation 
and Dr. Sauget's representative. So I did inform the family that the purpose of this 
exercise is to help the people of Guam. We're going to clear and grade it and fence it in 
and gate and charge for parking, that's A. B is eventually build a parking garage. Why? 
Because we have working drawings already completed by the architectural firm of 
Tanaguchi Ruth that was designed for the Department of Land Management building. So 
it's a three parking garage, three story containing 160 parking stalls. The length of this is 
this perfect the footprint with work with the three or four lots. Therefore we can increase it 
if we get the four lots and if we don't just get the three lots we'll put it in. Fronting this lot at 
the end of the boundary is Healing Hearts that used to be CL TC property containing an 
area of 2,000 meters. Behind that towards the cliff line is the proposed land exchange but 
I have to put in a road. So basically we do not diminish our land inventory because my 
exercise is meter for meter. Except the highest and best use of our property right now is 
really a residential home, executive home but for their lot the parking garage will fit 
perfectly. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - And it also and I talked to you in there on this Monte 
because I was called and asked on this what it does because it's close by to the hospital 
it's just you know walking across from the emergency I mean the expansion of the ER the 
new building coming up that's the bigger expansion. So hypothetically when I was called 
on that on that issue what they wanted to do is because of the public parking out there 
and now being that the hospital giving that all that employees are going to be given I 
guess a slot and I think they only have about 150 parking slots. But I think only 50 would 
be available for the public and the rest will be all given to you know doctors, nurses and 
so forth and during the day the only way this parking will be vacant is during the evening 
when you know other half of the employees of the GMH would have been gone. And then 
of course during the day and of course you still have the night nurses and so forth coming 
in but it'll be less of a so and I was talking to him I said even if you were to build there the 
only way that we're going to resolve that is to build their own parking in the front. But 
that's going to take time for them because then you have to concentrate one portion of the 
parking lot build up the two story whatever and then come to the other side. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

10 I 35 



Acting Chairman Michael Borja - How did this all get started? Did we have these owners 
come to us or we were seeking some property to improve the parking? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - That is correct. It started with GMH stating to the 
public that 450 stalls possibly looking at opening up 100 parking stalls for the public 
because the public has inadequate parking because the design is pursuant to the building 
code. Now the culture of Guam is when someone is sick the whole family comes. In the 
states it's one or two patients. In Guam maybe try 1 O or 20 people will come you know. 
But GMH has an employee count of 1,050 employees so it'll be very difficult to squeeze 
anymore parking. There's just no way okay. So I met with Senator Aline Yamashita who 
wants to assist us in driving this legislatively to fast track this land exchange. Now I went 
through with Margaret our Land Administrator the litany of why they should exchange. 
Like number one, there's noise pollution because it's an emergency room you're always 
going to have ambulance, 24/7, 365. Now unless you design your house to be 
soundproof which is extremely expensive you're going to hear the ambulance and that is 
really a noise pollution besides the possible litigations, besides the trash there, besides 
the illegal trespassing. What we're proposing is to relocate them on the cliff line with a 
better advantage for it, better view and maybe about 100 feet away from water, power and 
sewer. Because of the zoning R2 they can build a duplex or single family. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - How do they get access in there? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - This is the access from Ferdinand Magellan back 
this way so we have to provide a 40 foot access. But also they can build a condominium 
so they can redefine the horizontal property regime so it will work for them because it 
could be a family subdivision, it could be a business condominium and sell it based on the 
allowable units per 1250 square feet. So we're looking at that. The consensus with the 
children of Del Carmen is they're okay but they do want me to meet with Mr. Eddie Del 
Carmen himself so I'm ready. Government in the past has been very cooperative with Mr. 
Carmen because they gave him an acre of property over at Holiday Resort when he had it 
the hotel was called Suhiro and he was supposed to do many things but only provide a 
parking lot for Matapang Beach but ended up using more of that parking lot than the hotel 
itself. So part of that area that entity belongs to Chamorro Land Trust. Because of the 
necessity, because of the public convenience and because of public safety this is what I 
propose. Now if we build, I would like to build a 5 story parking garage simply because I 
already talked to the architects asking their propriety rights. What we have to do are two 
things, do a boring test and then do some structural analysis so that when we build the 
building it can sustain the weight. Now the reason why I want to go 5 storey is because it 
will be higher than the hospital and what an advantage point, what a view from Agana Bay 
to Tumon Bay with the rolling coast from Urunao, Ritidian and Hinapsan. On the top of 
the roof on the 5th floor I want to do two things and I've talked to Dr. Maria Okada to assist 
us in getting a grant for solar panels and that way when we put the solar panels it 
becomes covered parking. Number two, I want to put a restaurant on the 5th floor so we 
can have an income stream so we can rent it out at the highest possible bidder. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

11 I 35 



Acting Chairman Michael Borja - So who is going to own this parking garage? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - The garage will belong to us. The only way to 
effectuate this bill is to do a public private partnership, do an RFP, look for a developer 
who's willing to finance it build it and wait for their money. However, I've also talked to 
GEDA if we can float a bond to pay them outright and upon the completion we go turn 
key. Here's your money and the lien on the property will be a lease. Or they get 90% or 
95% of the income stream from the parking stall until the cost of their money, their profit, 
their cost is paid off. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Do you think people are going to pay for the parking? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - That's a very good question. In my mind I think 
yes. Simply because it's a need, simply because people pay an hour, $3 an hour, simply 
because our cost would be driven down and as former Chairman Calvo said the concern 
is from 8 to 5 then you have 1,050 employees all fighting for and the public for that time 
constraint. So that's where the bulk of the parking is. But I believe if we put a fence just 
on a cheapest scale, fence it and gate it and put a person there .. (interrupted). 

Commissioner Amanda Santos - How much are you going to charge? 

Administrative Director Monte Monte - I'm still looking at the cost. We'll its $3 an hour but 
maybe we can reduce that. Maybe if we put somebody on site it will be secured. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - With that concept of doing that is first you know that 
we have to get approval from the legislature which is already going to be. The other issue 
that I foresee in there is and that's a good point and question is would be remember we're 
looking at this is a public parking and a public hospital itself and I think we need to get the 
sentiments also of the hospital's position on this. They want to solve this problem there's 
no question about it. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes we have met with Gordon Misawa or 
something like that and a June Perez they are representing GMH. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - If we've got Senator Yamashita working on it on the 
legislative end towards trying to fund I guess fund for the improvement to be a parking lot 
but do we need anybody else's approval to make this land exchange? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Let me ask my expert Land Administrator 
Margaret Borja. What do you think Margaret? 

Margarita Borja (OLM Staff) - Well it was brought to our attention that there are 
covenants on the Perezville subdivision but Andrew is looking into it to find out whether or 
not we might have to get the homeowners association's approval. I'm not sure. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

12 I 35 



Acting Chairman Michael Borja - And then we got to make sure there are no liens on the 
property as well. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Correct. Well at this point in time there is none 
encumbered of record it's free and clear. The covenant also says that any hospital 
related activity. Now that should quantify itself because the parking garage is for the 
hospital the only difference is we own it now. That's our land and we're going to generate 
our own income you know and we're not building a clinic as the GLUC filed a resolution 
they are not going to approve any more clinics within Pereville any type of clinic or any 
schools. Because today there is the Sisters of Mercy Day Care and there is Doctor's 
Clinics and other clinics that popped up but GLUC has gone on record not to approve any 
more clinics. So maybe Dr. Sauget and Mr. Del Carmen were thinking of putting a clinic 
but I told them I informed them it isn't going to happen. So the only two possibilities are a 
house or a condo or duplex so three opportunities. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Which the condo they already have problems with 
that condo right next to the hospital that towers. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - That's what I'm saying, no but a family condo. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Okay so what do we need to do on this? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I formally request from the Board that they give 
me the blessing to proceed with the negotiation and upon meeting of the minds then we'll 
effectuate a deed of exchange together with Land Management. Land Management is 
also going to prepare the deed and finalize the map. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Monte on that land exchange this just pound for 
pound, inch for inch. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Meter for meter. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - 2,000 square meters? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Technically we're going for 4,000. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - They're going from a landlocked piece of property to a 
cliff line property. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Well behind that subject lot the four lots is CL TC 
property on the cliff line. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Well I have no objection for allowing this I don't know if 
we need to do a motion on it. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

13 I 35 



Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I would like to. I want to effectuate this bill the 
first quarter of 2013 and if Senator Yamashita is willing to prepare the bill and run it 
through the legislature and the Governor is ready to codify it into law you know their 
passage he concurs. So we're moving on fast track expeditiously. If you look at this 
already we carved out the front end of the road giving it to Healing Hearts so behind that 
really it doesn't flow into future development you know it's outside already. So if we 
develop northerly we'd be okay. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Do we have to carve all the way down? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - No just their four lots, four lots and the four lots is 
roughly of the same size. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Do I have a motion on the floor to allow the CL TC 
Administrative Director to proceed with discussions to relocate properties owned 
by Del Carmen and Sauget to switch lands in the proximate area, square foot for 
square foot so we can allow the properties they currently own to become part of the 
Guam Memorial Hospital parking facilities? 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane- So move Mr. Chairman. 

Commissioner Amanda Santos - I second it. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Any objections, or questions or comments? 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - On that motion I would prefer the Executive Director 
keep us apprised of that. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - And also too on that comment too that I share with 
the Vice-Chairman I know that you keep us up to power to speed and what really is 
transpiring on the issues and also I think I would like to also maybe give us heads with the 
GMH -to you know with their new Director and their what they you know whether they're in 
agreeable to the issues of what we just discussed now. As for me to go with that I have 
no problem with that because we do need that parking lot hypothetically. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - He's just going to be doing the discussions to begin the 
process and if the land exchange is agreed upon by the current owners then I guess we 
need to have final approval. We're not approving for the land exchange we're saying go 
ahead and proceed with it and once it's fine then we'll sign off. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - And we also need legislative concurrence. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Okay motion is carried. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

14 I 35 



3. John Rios - Request to lease portion of Lot 7150, Vigo for an antennae site 
Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - That subject lot is next to the water tank. Mr. 
Rios called in and requested to push this back to our January agenda because his partner 
is not here at this point in time. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Okay so we'll just table that. But what kind of antennae 
site is he looking at putting? Where is this in Yigo? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Going towards Andersen the last water tank you 
see on the right side. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Right before Andersen? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - You're talking about at least a quarter of a mile 
away. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - What is the antennae for? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Obviously they need some signals you know 
broadband signals in that area. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Oh like a cellphone site? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes cellphone. 

VII. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
1. Designation of Lot 328, lnarajan for farm, educational, medicinal and holistic 
purposes 
Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - This is CL TC property which contains an area of 
200 plus acres, 304 acres to be exact as being qualified into law for our residential 
subdivision and it isn't going to happen. It's extremely expensive. A lot of this land is 
erroneous as in cliff line and valleys and some ocean fronts. I mean you know affordable 
homes doesn't have to have ocean view. If we build affordable homes with ocean view it 
isn't going to be that cheap I can assure you that. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Is this Malojloj? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes sir. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Where is the Exxon gas station at? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - After this. You see this stretch this is where the 
hole is where there's a pump station and a water tank. Commissioners we did approve 
one request at this point in time to do a holistic healing remember Pastor Melvin Duenas. 
So we have to figure out how to best use this property and that's why I'm formally 
requesting the Board to consider a lot of farm land to be utilized here because 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

15 I 35 



infrastructure is really inadequate and extremely far away. Again it's clearly very 
exorbitant. So there's been request for more farming activities, there's request from a 
couple of guys that want to plant a thousand coffee trees. So we've been getting a lot of 
requests and there's a Chinese church group that want to grow durant and mangosteen 
which is the queen fruit a high source of free radicals. So we need to work with Land 
Management how we can carve it out. It looks flat on paper but not physically. So I want 
us to review this as a possible farm .. (interrupted). 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Really I thought that's all rocky out there. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Well we don't know until we walk it but I assume 
that it's pristine. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Where is the nun convent? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Further south. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - I've been on that lot and that's pretty rugged. That's 
pretty a lot of coral I don't know how you can grow anything on it. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - The Sisters used to grow for self-subsistence. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Basically all you're going to have to grow here is 
trees. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - The fact is its pristine and a lot of limbs and 
leaves and perhaps now part of the dirt is decomposed and then now it's good soil. For 
the area that have soil there's a lot of nutrients in the soil. It's never been farmed so you 
never extracted and over time it's giving you a lot of ingredients. So it's extremely difficult 
to access this property and extremely costly so I formally request from the Board to 
consider this as farming area. I put a question to USDA and NRCS to see if they would 
agree with it you know and support our farmers. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Doesn't the University have a .. (interrupted). 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Extension agent yes they do Dr. Bob Barber. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - They can determine if that's good land? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - I don't have a problem with that I agree with that. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I'm just trying to clearly define the highest best 
use. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

16 I 35 



Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Well if we do designate this as agricultural for the 
purpose of agriculture we really need to make sure that we don't have some of the past 
performances like we've had with some of the agriculture. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - And then it becomes a residential. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Yes it becomes a residential or herb growing or just 
misused. I don't know if there's a water table underneath that area. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - No it doesn't. Over at Talofofo Ugum river goes 
through Bubulao and Dandan and Kapone but not this side of the road. 

Commissioner Amanda Santos - How big is the Land Trust there? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - 304 acres that's almost 1.3 million square meters 
of land but usable who knows. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - But weren't we going to allow that one group those guys 
that came in doing the holistic? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Because the property you can use it both ways you 
can still make a residential here but it's costly for the developer. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Well it's to bring in the utilities and the infrastructure. So 
do we have a motion to allow this property? 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - Are you planning on probably giving the other entity 
that was requesting for medicinal? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - In what area and how much? The whole area? 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - We haven't designated that we just want to designate 
the whole area to be agricultural. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - By law it's an acre up north and an acre down 
south. Basically we can cut it up to four 100 by 100. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - If we cut this up for strictly for farming I think we 
should set a precedence for how much of an acre to be given to every individual. 
Adjacent to that particularly because let's say a company comes in there and say I want 
10 acres or 10 lots for that matter and only uses maybe 2 out of that okay I think we need 
to address that part otherwise and that's been the problem in the Chamorro Land Trust 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

17 I 35 



being held by other people for the longest time. And you give me 10 acres and I'm only 
going to use .5 or an acre. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - I think if anyone comes in and ask for the use of that 
property we should give them piece meal as they go along and they improve and they 
request for an additional acre then we could probably provide but minimal amount for 
whatever he's going to do or plant or whatnot. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - And they have to have a plan of action. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - I think we can discuss those kinds of things in the future. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - It's just that the Executive Director wants all this area 
as designated .. (interrupted). 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Dedicated as a farming. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - So moved Mr. Chair. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - So the motion is to allow Lot 382 in the 
municipality of Malojloj, lnarajan to be designated for farming, educational, 
medicinal and holistic purposes. 

Commissioner Amanda Santos - I second it. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - No objections the motion is carried. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I assure the Commissioners, Mr. Chairman that 
rule number one we're going to have bonafide farmers. Number two the sins of the past 
don't work today. There's a different era, different time, different Commissioners and 
different Director and because of that I want to go to the next item it's called the 
professionals services agreement for legal services. We are now on the one yard line. 
When Mr. Robert Cruz sign and I sign we're on the 8 inches line because the CFO has to 
sign and the Governor has to sign and that's it. The Attorney General Fred Nishihira 
guaranteed that this contract is a template for all future attorneys for whatever department 
and number two he will sign off immediately. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - In January? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - No December. 

2. GWA 
Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Guam Waterworks has been given some acreage 
in the past by CL TC. What has happened pursuant to the consent decree has given 
GWA more power so they started a ground breaking ceremony without our approval. 
They initiated the conversation with us and we have recognized the necessity for this 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

18 j 35 



additional land. The problem is this property is unregistered and it's encumbered by them 
inherit by them to register the property and prepare all the maps, serving due process and 
hiring an attorney and going through the legal..(interrupted). 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Is this the same location where that existing water tank 
that burst? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes that's gone one of them is gone. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - Are we fighting for the same property or what? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - No. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - We haven't registered yet? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - No we haven't registered it. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - For Chamorro Land Trust, why not? 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - This is Chamorro Land Trust property? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Can we begin at the point of beginning? When 
was Chamorro Land Trust? 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - 94. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - 95. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Okay from 95 to 2010 I apologize for the sins of 
the past. As of 2011 and now 2012 we have 85 lots that we're fast tracking. Part of the 
problem is getting all this land but there's a total of 200 Land Management Government of 
Guam lands that needs to be registered. We need land registration maps, abstracts of 
title, process serving, an Attorney General to file on our behalf which we're going to use 
our counsel to help prepare the package and get calendared in court and present our 
case and fight with our neighbors. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - In the past I recommended that because when the 
former Directors presented those maps and documents where unregistered land was 
showing up I said then why aren't we moving on it. I mean anybody can come in and 
register a piece of property. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - And the map is dominant to the neighbors that is 
unregistered so any maps thereafter becomes sub-serving to the dominant map. So in 
other words if they claim this boundary the courts sanction it to be legal then that 
boundary holds whether we're government or not I'm sorry. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

19 I 35 



Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - To quote to that on what Mr. Matanane stated is 
back then when Joe Borja was the Director we did confront the Legislature on this and 
Joe Borja but the problem they kind of slammed us on that because Joe said we need to 
do this. But because the Legislature didn't support us in giving the financial for that 
because Joe did tell them Mr. Borja at the time that you know we need money to get all 
these land because why wasn't was it registered. Like Mr. Borja said at the time hey we 
need to get this property registered but we don't have the money and we confronted them 
at the Legislature at the time and whatever transpired after that they chose not to and 
that's why like you said the sins of the past was you know it's still being the sins of the 
past. But the Legislature was fully aware of this because we did confront that I know with 
Mr. Borja. 

Vice-Chairman David Matananae - Since we are all in one then that's the reason why I 
asked that question but not being cynical on that but I'm saying we have encountered this 
back then about maybe 8, 10 years ago. I mentioned that but I guess nobody wanted to 
move on it. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I appreciate that comment Commissioner 
Matanane that because of the Resolution No. 9 now the consolidation and merging with 
Department of Land Management, CL TC and Ancestral is the right path to move forward. 
Right now we have Land Administration and Survey that helps Chamorro Land Trust in 
our mapping, in our leasing, in the whole exercise to assist the beneficiaries of the Trust. 
This has been a problem in the past because everyone is territorial, everyone has their 
domain, all departments were having a hard time with money. But because we're 
merging we have merged into one department we're multi-tasking. We're really working 
beyond the norm. Now everyone is really working as assiduously to assist all of us. But 
Department of Land Management in all fairness is in charge of the Government land. 
Back then in 1959 it was given birth okay so now 53 years later there is still a lot of 
Government land to register. That is my long term goal and I believe I'm going to get it 
done. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - Mr. Chair and Mr. Mafnas back then when I asked how 
much land does Chamorro Land Trust have .. (interrupted). 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Initially 10,000 acres. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - What was the amount of land that was transferred over 
to CLTC? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - 10,000 acres. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - There's a lot of land that was unregistered. Why is it 
when you transfer property from one entity to the other you have an inventory and I've 
been referring to the inventory back then and I still haven't gotten the inventory. Now that 
we're are all in one I would appreciate what was the total amount of land that was 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

20 I 35 



transferred over to CL TC at that point in time in 95 so we can work from our inventory and 
see how many have we given out and so we'll know what we have. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Well I do know Commissioners that the initial law 
transferred 10,000 acres from Land Management inventory to Chamorro Land Trust. I do 
also know that we tested several subdivisions and tracts. I also know that the end result 
was there are more land leases signed than acreage on the land. For example this is 100 
acres well there's probably 150 leases. So we do have a huge concern here. A lot of this 
exercise has been quantified quantitatively by Land Management because now we're 
piecing and putting everything together from GIS and maps and everything. In the past 
the Directors and the staff were trying to accommodate the applicants. To date we have 
almost 10,741 so we have signed almost 3,000 leases. We're way behind but there were 
a lot of leases that were signed on unregistered land so that's why we have to do the fast 
track. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Where does that come down to this Waterworks 
request? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - We need the Board to approve effectuating the 
deeding out of this property, conveying our interest to GWA pursuant to the District Court 
consent decree. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - So GWA is going to own the land? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - That is correct. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - So what's the difference between them owning the land 
and Okkodo leasing the land? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Big difference but because of the consent decree. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - So they walk scot-free? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes they get free land and they don't even say 
thank you. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - No they get free land for 99 years. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - No their mandate say fee simple rights not long 
term lease. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Fee simple rights well then put a value on it. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I like that Mr. Chairman. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

21 I 35 



Acting Chairman Michael Borja - No I am serious. I mean they're not a condemning 
agency to come in and condemn the lands for their use. The Federal courts are 
mandating this because of the ineptness of their performance in the past and it doesn't 
have anything to do with the Chamorro Land Trust. It's just that they are going to be 
using properties or reusing properties they already currently use and by building this piece 
of property you know they want to own the land forever and it'll be their property? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - I don't agree. I think that they can have it like everybody 
else can that needs the land. Okkodo High School is leasing the land at a significantly 
nominal amount..(interrupted). 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - But the end result is we don't diminish our 
inventory. Eventually after 99 years the property reverts back to our inventory. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Right but here you would diminish it. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - If we give fee simple rights correct. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - If they think that they have to have it fee simple rights 
then they get it fee simple price. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - I agree with you Mr. Chair. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - But we're not going to have a fee simple price for 
nothing. If they can't work around their mandate like that then that's not our problem. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - That's what our argument in the previous meeting and 
this is GWA as you mentioned Mr. Executive Director GWA and GPA is one of the same I 
believe that's what I heard and they're going to build their going to build infrastructure for 
nothing. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Did we give them the land for GPA? 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - No. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - We leased it right the GPA building? 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - No. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - They cleverly went under the auspices of 
payment in lieu of taxes. We're supposed to be getting $800,000 per annum from them 
from the GWA, GPA. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - But we haven't. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

22 I 35 



Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - No. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - I don't move on this at all under these conditions. Only 
if they want fee simple they get fee simple price and we have to determine what that price 
would be. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I do want to forewarn the Board here that I took 
the same position you took Mr. Chairman. Right, Margaret? And they told us we'll sue 
you guys. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Who is they? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - GWA's counsel. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Let them. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - But I don't mind that because let's bring it on but 
the thing is they're stating and referencing the three hundred million dollar demand from 
EPA. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Yes because they're not doing their job properly. That is 
not my problem. I don't have any control over them getting fined by the EPA and it has 
nothing to do with this it has everything to do with clean water. This is just providing water 
facilities this is not hindering us from allowing them to do their job. 99 year lease or fee 
simple price and perhaps it should be negotiable. There are some nice homes up there 
and here he is degrading the piece of property in his letter its unusable land. Their money 
didn't wash off all those other houses when they failed to maintain their facilities properly 
when the collapse occurred. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - That's what I was saying that because if the tank 
fell and dropped there's a million gallons of water flowing and it can destroy your house. 
So they're saying we're liable. Can we consider the 99 year lease? 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - At a dollar. That's what we do we're not going to be 
unfair to them. We should treat them like we've treated some others. In the case of a not 
for profit organization for building schools on our island you know we got an extra dollar 
because they talked and we subdivided the piece of property and we still own the land. 
But it's the same kind of thing that goes. In 99 years from now if they don't think this thing 
is going to last 99 years then I don't think they're building the right tank. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - On the dollar issue are we talking just the entire lot 
or are we going to break it down? 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Well it looks to me like they're using two pieces of 
property already. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

23 I 35 



Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - That's what I'm trying to say I think .. (interrupted). 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - But they're asking specifically for Lot 5380-12 which that 
tank looks like they need to rebuild. What's the deal with 5380-1 the one just south of it? 
What's that piece of property where existing water tanks are already .. (interrupted). 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - It's existing. A lot of these have already been 
removed so the other tank is straddling the other lot line. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - It's straddling two lots and then they're going to build it 
just on one lot. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes as shown and annotated on the new map. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - So what's the size of the new lot? 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - It's a pretty large piece of unusable property. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - If it's unusable then the question in line if you ask 
this if it's unusable then why are you going to build a tank there when the piece of 
property is lopsided and it cannot be used because then you know the endangerment of 
that. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - It's for the benefit of everyone we need to have drinking 
water and we need to have water storage facilities that are safe and long lasting. I think 
what I've read from the articles the way they're going to build this it sounds like to me like 
the same kind they built on the top of the hill by the airport. I think that perhaps you know 
if we can just proceed and let them know that we're behind them we don't want to impede 
this progress or impede their court mandates however, they can't just have the property 
because it's going against all the .. (interrupted). 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Mr. Chairman I formally request that that concern 
be in motion that it be for 99 years with a dollar payment and its leasehold not fee simple. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - So the motion on the floor is to have the piece of 
property designated as Lot 5380-12 in the municipality of Mangilao formerly the 
municipality of Barrigada for the use to build a water tank for Guam Waterworks 
Authority that this piece of property be leased to the Guam Waterworks Authority 
for a 99 year term at a cost of one dollar. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - So moved Mr. Chair that's the motion. 

Commissioner Amanda Santos - I second it. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

24 I 35 



Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Any objections to this? All I have to say is if there 
is any ramifications of this that comes down we need to probably look at having a 
need to immediately meet to discuss it because I don't want to hold them up on 
these things. There's certain timelines that they have and I don't want to be the 
ones that are the hold up on the progress. 

There were no objections, MOTION PASSED. 

3. Quantifying CL TC applicants for assistance 
Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - These numbers here that I prepared are from A to 
Z. I've quantified how many half cast people. For example letter A, Chamorro Land Trust 
begins with Abad down to Z, Zamora. So they're all half cast Chamorro with other 
ethnicity we call half breed. The letter A in itself is 741. There's a total of 10,741 
applicants at this point in time so what I did based on CL TC's database is I quantified the 
A's all the way to Z who I think are Chamorros and that can be further validated checking 
the birth certificate. Notwithstanding like for example there's some Borjas that are 
Palauans, there are some Santos, some Cruz, some Reyes are Filipinos, I didn't go there 
because that would necessitate for me to go back into their files. But I purposely did this 
exercise to meet with GHURA if need be to the Board and I already sent an email to their 
acting Director and Deputy Director if there is a way and they assist us because 
unconditionally and unequivocally don't agree with HUD that CL TC does not qualify. As 
far as I'm concerned my opinion I don't care what other Directors did, do, or did not do I 
want to ensure that we look for all possible assistance, grants, money for the beneficiaries 
of the Trust. Now for them to say that we don't qualify and that former two Directors told 
me that every time. The first Director that was forced to resign happens to be my God 
brother and he said no you can't do that because CL TC is not friendly to other ethnicity. 
Well as you can see what I did from A to Z the number of people at the end of the day 
when I did the math and got 3,576 mixed Chamorros over 10, 7 41 equates to .333, one
third. So if we have 3,000 some half breeds then we add another 3,000 Chamorros that's 
about 7,000 people. Now even if HUD works with us and gives us 10% financing to build 
apartments we will help 700 plus beneficiaries of the Trust and that's what I'm trying in 
that. I only think it's fair that HUD help us because we're not just Chamorros now but that 
doesn't mean they should not accept Chamorros. It should be Chamorros and whatever 
half breeds because the half breeds are Micronesians, Japanese, Chinese, Koreans a 
totally different ethnicity. Haoles, Hawaiians, Filipinos I mean you name it. Guam is a 
mesh well of other ethnicities. So I just wanted to show the Board what I'm doing, what 
I'm trying to do, what I'm trying to quantify. So I initiated the discussion with the Director 
and Deputy Director but if need be I'm going to go before the Board with birth certificates 
if they want it to request their reconsideration. So they can help get more vouchers for us 
to build apartment complexes. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - So what happened here HUD .. (interrupted)? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - All these times says no, no, no or I don't think the 
Directors ever tried to appeal to GHURA but I don't care about that I just want to try to 
move forward. Just because they say no I don't want to assume that it's final and 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

25 I 35 



absolute. I want to go through the exercise and really reject it or approve. So I'm just 
showing the Board that 32% of our applicants are half cast, that's substantial. That 
means that there's only 67% Chamorro or less. We have the birth certificate to support 
this. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Can I just suggest on this form if you're going to be 
submitting it to anybody can we just take the term half breed and use maybe instead 
mixed ethnicity. And then your percentage here the number itself .337 but if you use the 
percentage then it becomes even a small number so really the number should be like 
33.7%. (note: Document was returned back to Director and not for the record) 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I'm just looking for another way of funding so we 
could build affordable apartments so we can help our fellow beneficiaries of the Trust and 
constituents and I don't like to assume. 

4. Revenue collection 
Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - As of this Fiscal Year October 31st to December 
we have collected $199,145.00. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Good job but I know there are still a lot of folks out there 
who are sort of dragging their feet on paying. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - That's right which includes lessees. 

5. GICC 
Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo -We talked about on the issue of the golf course. 
What's the status on that? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I've written a demand letter in the amount of 
$400,000 plus and I gave them till January 31st to make good on the delinquency. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - How did you deliver it? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - By hand I met with the General Manager Mr. 
Koike. So he's aware he's put on notice and I told him if you don't make good you don't 
clear the delinquencies then we are forced to litigate and if we begin that there is no 
backing down and remember your lease expires 2014. So that means you will never get 
a renewal unless you clean up all the delinquencies to include payment of $175,000 to 
Department of Revenue and Tax for property taxes. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - So is that part of the $400,000? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - No in addition to that so we're talking about 
$600,000 plus. He said that he's going to do it. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

26 j 35 



6. JR Mateo 
Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Monte how about the one in Barrigada by Revenue 
and Tax. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - JR Mateo, he's good he paid the $20,000 that we 
requested. He has removed maybe 4,950 cars. I think there's about 50 cars up there so 
he's moving. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja -We even took away some of the property right? I mean 
we reduced his property. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes but we haven't given him a lease yet we did 
give him a survey authorization to work on it. But eventually we want to relocate his 
business to and will be relocated to the CL TC property fronting Batulo Street within the 
Global Recycling Center Incorporated next to the golf course. 

7. Guam Raceway Park 
Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - One more on this Guam Raceway Park issue for the 
firing range have you been approached by anything on that by any chance? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I have submitted the answers to the questionnaire 
required by the scoping work and the JPO and I told him that from our point of view we 
have no objections to the military buildup however Guam Raceway Federation is loudly 
and clearly protesting the buildup on their site. The firing range being located situated in 
their site. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - If I can reiterate on that issue I think because I was 
approached by the Guam Racing you know I'm not going to lie to you guys I'm very close 
to that organization you know I started out with that with the Guam Motorcycle Club and 
so forth. They did confronted me on the issues where I really stand and you know but one 
of the lingering issue that they're really looking at is they're fine if that's what's the case 
what they want. But in terms of that what they want back from the military is also provide 
us a place too at the same place because they literally have spent hundreds of thousands 
of dollars to build that place up to where it was now for a car strip and everything. A lot of 
it is for the young kids because if you take that away really Mike okay then where are 
these guys going go now to really race for the weekends? 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - They'll be doing like they were doing before all in the 
streets and endangering everyone. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - They're not saying that they don't want the firing 
range it's just that the fact remains is they're looking at too is where do we go from here 
okay? This was granted by the Chamorro Land Trust back then. It took the Legislature to 
actually push that issue to be given that and it's just overnight because they were told by 
the buildup committee that that's your problem. They're not even willing to free and 
simple pay a price for what they you know and what they're saying is okay we're going to 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

27 I 35 



you know if it needs to go that direction then but provide us a place. I mean the military 
there's property over there in the northwest area that they can provide or you know just 
give us what back evens, even-even. But just don't leave us in the middle of nowhere of 
everything we built. I support the buildup too but in reality of that too I support them. I just 
want to let that known to you guys because I think that's a worthwhile thing for the people 
of Guam. It's really for the young generations today. I've been up there many of times. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I salute you Commissioner Calvo. A life is 
precious, it really has no value but of two words we're really in quandary at this point in 
time and that two words is national security. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Yeah I have no qualms with that but that can you 
and I know Mike you're in the military I've served myself in terms of that but what I think it 
boils down I think we need to really I mean gee they said already what 40% belongs 
already to the military here on the island and the people of Guam. You take that that's 
another 5%, 10%, that they're going to be 50% of that next thing you know. So I'm saying 
we're being bombarded. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Nothing is final. By this time it should have already 
been done the way they vision it when they first announced it but it hasn't and it's gone 
from a fast track to a snail pace. A lot of it is well beyond you know anything anyone on 
this island even has anything to do with because it's all in the national level. But I think 
when the time comes when they finally do make their decisions because you know they 
recognize I believe that..(interrupted). 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Even Congress right now can't really on the cut 
back. I mean just a couple of nights I heard on the radio that the buildup will be cut back 
on some of these areas. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - But anyway I understand I agree with you there needs to 
be a place for the young people to do the motor sporting that they like to do. Otherwise 
they'll be out there stripping the soils on Channel Ten and then you get a lot of soil run 
offs into the rivers and the water through the rainy seasons. I think in time when that point 
comes there's discussions that be had again but for now it's a lot of speculations. But it's 
just you know .. (interrupted). 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - This has been you know since the last administration 
and yes it hasn't really been ratified from where it is. But they just wanted to really you 
know if it's going to happen Oscar it's going to happen. 

8. Payment of all future off island travel and per diem cost 
Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I formally and humbly request consideration from 
the Board to look at financing a trip for me to go to Japan because there's two leases I 
want to attempt to bring to Guam. There are three companies that I will be visiting in the 
Tokyo stock exchange. They're making money, they're real, they have hundreds if not 
thousands of employees. One is to grow turnip because that's what they do. The other is 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

28 I 35 



to farm balati, sea urchins and they call that black diamond because they'll pick it up 
disect it remove certain things boil it and sell it to China. And China has a voracious 
appetite that they cannot quench. They just don't have enough balati for the Chinese. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Don't they come in season for that? You don't eat 
balati everyday out there. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - No so look at that subject lot you know that's 
where we're talking about maybe three, four thousand feet of (inaudible) that's Chamorro 
Land Trust property. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Where's this at? Malojloj? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yeah. So number three there's a company that 
does hybrids with seeds and it guarantees a 100% that it will grow and it's again a 
multimillion dollar operation. I'm hoping to bring these three companies and help educate 
our GCC students or high school students on Chamorro Land Trust property and also do 
business with. Do a public private partnership with them. We provide the land or the 
ocean and then they create the business. If we bring the hybrid seedling business it'll 
only help our farmers. We have a thousand plus agricultural leases and probably another 
thousand people that would like to farm. So that's the purpose of this exercise, income 
stream, educational and because next to GWA and GPA site that's from CL TC property 
off Route 15 that's a possible site for a solar school. I don't know if I mentioned it to the 
Board but basically I've talked to quantum already and they're interested and I have three 
leads from the Republic of Taiwan to build the school at their expense. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - What kind of school? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - To teach kids how to make solar panels. The 
game for them to come to Guam is they can produce and sell the products based on our 
needs because of typhoon, salt and wind conditions and rain. But the major gain for this 
company is that they can qualify themselves for all military bases because the product will 
be made on Guam USA. It's a USA project and only that brand will be accepted at all 
military bases so they have a new market to sell. Guam being a US soil will always 
provide stability. We're mandated to have scholarship programs right Commissioners? 
That's part of our mandates of law but I'm hoping that we can put schools to get the 
funding. Like UOG for example they built the buildings and now the endowment fund is 
generating all kinds of funding for University of Guam. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - So this trip is to Japan to go talk with three different 
companies. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas- Those three companies as much as I can. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

29 I 35 



Acting Chairman Michael Borja - I just want to make sure for full disclosure that nobody 
has any interest whatsoever in any of these companies at all so there's no personal 
interest involved just to make sure nobody is lining their pockets. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Right and I would like to ask Senator Ben 
Pangelinan to approve it that way we will get legislative concurrence. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Where is the money coming from? You said within the 
budget? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I think it will be out of the budget or the last one 
for consideration is uniforms. How I expect to fund these trips or the uniforms for example 
is Commissioners Matanane and Calvo were here prior to making a deal with Younex as 
a staging area during that exercise gentlemen correct me if I'm wrong there's no actual 
funds monetary numbers in place. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Right. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas -The deal was for Younex to use the area for a 
staging area and increase the capacity of the sewer line and the water line and to put the 
property back to its original state with the fence and rocks. Correct gentlemen? 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Right. 

Uniforms 
Administrative Director Monte Mafnas -Well I came on Board and I did the math and I 
demanded monetary compensation. So the end result is Younex agrees to pay $100,000 
so that was never ever identified that that's money. That's new found money for CL TC. It 
was never ever. It was my tenacious that made that happen, my tenacity. But all I'm 
saying is I would like to request the Board to consider to provide us the access of that 
money so we can buy uniforms for all the OLM workers, employees. Now we'll put our 
logo and stitch OLM/CL TC/ALC. Number one, the litany I wanted to propose is this we 
improve the working conditions by having a dress code so we emulate professionalism. 
Number two, when the beneficiaries of the Trust walk in they know who they're talking too. 
If they go to Land Administration they know that that is the real DLM/ALC/CL TC 
employee. Number three, the employees will be cognizant that they are wearing the 
uniforms. They're more likeable to perform. In other words if a customer comes in they're 
not going to turn around and walk away. Now they're obligated to make sure and ensure 
providing service. Number four, it's a savings for the employees. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - GPA does that, I think Public Works does that they 
wear uniforms too and it just represents the agency. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - And Department of Administration. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

30 I 35 



Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - I have no problems with that I think to me that's a 
good thing it's for us because then it identifies the person now because you can be sitting 
in an office and saying well go see Terese or I don't want to use that word but at least that 
it's okay that she wears a uniform. I don't foresee any problem in having a dress code. 
Even banks now they do it now and maybe on Friday they can still do Chamorro day. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Most of all too our agents go and do field 
inspections so they're required to wear their badges but not everybody does that. Right 
from the get go they know that they're talking to an official capacity by seeing their 
uniform. That's another purpose. We're going to have to do a lot of inspections for 
residential and agricultural and actually all our leases, physical inspections. That's why 
I'm saying the beneficiaries of the Trust will gain from this too. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - The only thing I have here Monte is remember that 
this a one-time shot that we're going to get money from that organization okay. Now 
hypothetically uniforms tend to tear and wear and what not. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - We propose to buy 5 sets for everybody. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - But as the time goes down the years I mean 2, 3 
years that clothes is going to be either wear and tear or lose or fade. Now do we put that 
as part of our funding every year now to be part of the dress code? Another thing is if the 
employees say their shirt is torn and everything there's a replacement on that which like 
okay bring the old one in or whatever for that matter. I'm just foreseeing that portion there 
is you can't wear that uniform I mean even in school every year I buy all my grandkids 
uniforms every year because they've out grown. So that's my specs there is $100,000 
maybe we can provide all that for the first year or put whatever we're going to on the later 
part of the years. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - That's a very good point Commissioner I did not 
think that much forward. But I was thinking there are 56 employees at 5 units for them 
that's roughly 280 pieces at allowing $100 at 20, 20, 20, 20, 20 per outfit that's $100 times 
280 is $28,000. I'm asking to get $30,000 for example and if we do an RFP and Paul's 
Taylor wins the contract and it only comes out at $28,000 the $2,000 goes back to CL TC. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - The only thing that I foresee here is because once 
we wear that uniform that is going to be the dress code okay and on the next 
Administration or further down the line I don't what the change of it but in the meantime as 
we're in here I think we also got to look into the future what because like I said everyday 
employees tend to be either some of them might be losing weight, some of them might be 
getting bigger. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - I think we can look at the details of these thing further 
down but..(interrupted). 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

31 I 35 



Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - I think Mike we got to look at it in that direction 
because if we're going to go with that concept. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Let's just see what these other departments are doing 
and who's actually paying for the uniforms. You know if it's a cost sharing or if it's a full on 
by the, I just know that if anyone is making minimum wage for example or close to it you 
cannot make them pay for their uniforms. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I propose a one-time deal for now at this point in 
time Mr. Chairman at five pieces without them expending anything. So I don't know about 
the following year but right now I've identified a source of funding. This is new found 
money. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Well if you can get it. That money is paid to Department 
of Administration and put towards the interest of the general fund. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I propose that Younex pays 70/30 to the 
Association of Department of Land Management. They get tax credit. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - I'd be careful about that. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I did question this approach to Assistant AG Fred 
Nishihira and Cathy Foulkus and they said as long as we get legislative concurrence 
we're okay. I did also drop this on Napu and he said he likes the idea and he's going to 
recommend it to Senator Pangelinan. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Is he still going to remain the oversight for this? 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - He is. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I don't know most likely. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - The money that is coming in from Younex then how are 
you going to do this? Are you going to deposit it towards our checking account? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - We don't have a checking account. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - Yes we do. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - They took it away. I've been asking since January 
of 2011 for our money back. I've been asking the front office, Chief Financial Officer, 
BBMR, Attorney General, OPA. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - Then how can this be a Trust when all receivables 
goes right to the General Fund and everybody gets a the piece of the pie? 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

32 I 35 



Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - I pleaded with the OPA to give us that capacity to 
write a check. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - And what did she say? Did she mention anything? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - She said we'll look into that. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane -We don't want to get into a snag where they question 
that. The Senators you know will wonder to see how we get a fund where we can tap on 
it then we'll be okay on it but it's how we're going you know put that funding right close to 
where the Executive Director and the Board Chair can tap on it. That I don't know how 
we're going to go about that. 

Commissioner Amanda Santos - Oh so you need Doris's approval? 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - But we need to check first to see how, maybe come up 
with a certain where we can deviate that money put it there for use of Chamorro Land 
Trust. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo -We just want to make sure that the money is being 
used to where it's supposed to be and accountable into that. So if they do allow it that 
itself shows that the audits says yes this xx amount of money was used last year whether 
it be $1,000 or $2,000 or whatever. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas -When I get the concurrence maybe we can go 
forward after that after the fact. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - Check into it and see how we can and see what as 
long as we make apprise all the officials. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - No that will go through GSA because it's over 
$15,000. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - If we do still have that checking account we can always 
deposit it in there. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - But it will help Younex too because our 
employees association is a nonprofit. 

Acting Chairman Michael Borja - Well I hope we get it, I don't know about those guys. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Yes that's true. Well it's new found money if we 
do ever get it. But with our Attorney on board maybe things can happen. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

33 I 35 



9. Land Exchange/One-Stop Building 
Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - The final thing I forgot to mention to you guys was 
a land exchange right? I mentioned the parking garage but by law Land Management has 
to give up 3,000 square meters to a Rosario family and I asked her if we can do a land 
exchange she says no but whatever land I get I want to sell it. You know where DISID is 
at next to Kmart there's a triangular portion right back there. The original condemnation 
was for a court house. So by law Land Management is going to give them the land. The 
problem is we're trying to collectively build a government building because there are 
several agencies that are paying close to 3 million dollars why not build our own building. 
So that's the site we tentatively agreed on and I want to protect as much land as we can. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - So we can kiss the one in Agana goodbye or what? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - No I made an offer to the Attorney General to 
we'll build your building you just pay us for it. Agana eventually we'll be maxed out in our 
50,000 square feet. This way if we build 200,000 square feet we can build a one stop 
center for everybody to come and do all their business. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Monte on this land issue in Agana that we were 
originally to build for Land Management is that still on the drawing board? 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas -We cannot borrow at this point in time because 
the Governor borrowed at 100% in capacity. However we can engage in a public private 
partnership and bid it out like that. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Because if I'm not mistaken and you were there that 
that was one of the issues that Land Management at the time was pushing because they 
had that money to build that building. 

Vice-Chairman David Matanane - I thought they said they got a loan. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Yeah. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Well the loan was approved and I had it 
extended. The problem was USDA did not guarantee the loan because the Title One they 
called expired. We entered into Title Two which necessitated an environmental report 
and traffic study. So we gave them after completion the environmental report and the 
traffic study although they never approved it. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - But at the time Paul Santos and at the time Land 
Management they because they were really pushing hard on that remember Dave 
because they really wanted to build this. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - The property is there the building drawings are 
complete. Bank of Guam can book the loan but we need USDA's guaranty otherwise 
Bank of Guam will not give us the loan. 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

34 I 35 



Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - Well that's not what they were at the time and that's 
why we went ahead and authorized to release that piece of property from Ricardo Salas 
and also Cristobal. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - We still own it it's about 4, 100 square meters of 
land it is fronting Obrien Drive. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - One of the issues there at the Land Management 
that I opposed at the time was they wanted us to be the tenant. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - But in the spirit of one Government providing the 
public with one stop I think we should look in building here in Tamuning. Gas is 
expensive, time is expensive, everybody's time is expensive and why drive all around 
Guam. Just go to one place and then that's it. So that is what I'm working on . Yes we 
can build but we'll be maxed out in no time. That's why I said we can build a parking 
garage because we have a working drawing already for the parking garage. 

Acting Commissioner Oscar Calvo - One question Tamuning, that farm that food stand. 

Administrative Director Monte Mafnas - Oh yeah I asked them to come and he did call me 
but I didn't return his call. I told him I wanted to inspect his operation in Dededo before we 
move forward if it's real. I have questions and reservations about that. 

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION - None. 

IX. ADJOURNMENT - Meeting adjourned at 3: 18pm. 

ate completed: January 3, 2013 

Date'M· l~ z6 I? 
Date~A.J f 7, :?01.J 

COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
December 20, 2012 

35 I 35 



~ 

~ 

• 
~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

• • • • • 
:JI 

~ 

~· 

~· 

a 

• • • • a 
a 
a 
a 

• • • • • • 

Henry M. Simpson 
General Manager 
Guam International Raceway 
967-Cross Island Rd. 
Santa Rita, GU 96915 

Dear Henry, 

Thank you very much for the opportunity to present you with the proposal for Guam Auto Sports . 

(G.A.S.) - Guam's Ultimate Driving Experience. Please find enclosed the presentation for G.A.S. as well 

as a Bio and proposed lease terms . 

As you know I have over 20 years experience in Guam Tourism. Operating Guam's largest 

entertainment complex; The Sandcastle, as well as BIG Media, BIG Cruises and Sandcastle Saipan, 

have developed very good relationships with the Guam Tour Agencies. These close relationships have 

educated me on their business standards and requirements, that I am confident will be useful in 

promoting G.A.S. 

I am a board member of the Guam Visitors Bureau (GVB) and the Guam Hotel and Restaurant 

Association (GHRA). Through my combined 14 years of experience with these organizations I have 

discovered that Guam is in dire need of world class attractions, especially in sport tourism. Recently, I 

visited Singapore to scout their Ultimate Drive Experience optional tour and learned that it is operated 

on public roads. I am very confident that G.A.S. will be more exciting and successful with the Guam 

International Raceway facility as it provides various driving options where as a public road course limits 

the thrill that G.A.S. strives to offer its customers . 

I hope that the Board Members of the Chamorro Land Trust Commission will look favorably on my 

proposal. Together I know that we will provide the Community and Guam visitors with the safe, new and 

exciting driving experience that only G.A.S and the Guam International Raceway facility can offer. 

7 
Rizk Saad 

Owner /Operator 



~ 
I 

~ 

~ 

:a 
:a 
:w 
:a 
:a 
:a tlO 

E :w c ·-=- ........, ro ·-=- u :J • 
~ 

x l9 =- LU 
~ ........, c • ~ V) 0 

<( ~ 0 QJ =a ~ u 
c • =-

~ -c QJ 

~ 
c ·-~ :a ro QJ :a s a. 

:31 x 
:a QJ UJ z :a 
:a 
~ 

:a 

=-
:a 
3 

3 

3 



=
:a 
:a 
:a 
~ 

:m 
:m 
:m 
~ 

=II 
:m 
:m 
:ii 

=
=
=
=II 

:m 
=II 
!9 

• • • 
ill 

• • • :m 
a 

=
~ 



:JI 

=
=II 

=II 

=II 

=
=II 
:al 

=II 

=
=
=II 

=
=
=
=
=II 

=
=
:m 
Zll 

=
=
=II 

=
:a 
=
:a 
=II 

!II 
~ 



... 
I 

• • 
=II 
:m 
~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

=II 

~ 

~· 

:JI 

~ 

=II 

=II 

=II 

=II 
:m. 
:;m, 

=-· • 
~ 

:mi 
:a! 

=-· 
;:a1 
:::.-

=-· 
~ 

~ 



~ 

3 

:a 
=II 

=II 

=II 

:a 

=
=
:;m 

~ 

~ 

=
=-
=
=
=
=II 

=II 

=
• • 
:m 
:m 
:II 

a 
a 
a 
a 

• a 

• 



iiliiiiiiiiiiiiii~i~~ll~~~~~~~~~ 

iE·····x· · P· E···· R· 11EN.·1 !C 1E ! ,~ ·· .. - ·- · ._.::::. ;_ '-.. .. L ... ::::. t ..._ ;·.:.... · ! 

o'f driv'i ng-~ a · .... ·.. . . . -· - . ···, ,· ... 

b·orghini ·~ The 

·· tand 1most 

val'lable :in the 

::iiJble. 

As th·e d rlv·~:r ·. . .. . . . - - ·- ·-· - _, 

command and feel 

h 
' ... 

ti.· .. ·e ieng1n·e revving,, 
push the piedall down~·l 

b·est \!Vay to d iscov·er t 
·capab'iliti·es of thesep·· 

h''i f"" ... * .. ·.'.' cars w 1 .. :.e a pro·.;ess11g:ra 

sltti ng besid·e yotr · 

you to achiev~4;1l 



lllllllillliiiii~~~~iii~~~~~~MM~ 

i·ona 1I 
l<<w·i!I~ be the 

wiill be 
o :m.eet th·e 
.ards. 
t.J:nds ·wi 11 be 
· meiet the 

~:ratiion to 

SA.F.!ET·· y·· 
··- :~ '. · ... ~ ... ; · 1 .... '. ·.l 

• .A professi·o 
t ·r·a·· ·c :k ·o· ip·· 0 ra· ·t: ·o,.· ir ·-·· : ....... ;· ..... .:. ': .. ··!.:··· ~:' ··. i. ;. '·L 

t t d t oon .. rac ·e·_ ~.o 
·o· ;pe· n· ·1· ·ng·· "'ji n·· · ·d·' p·· o·· · !C:"t: · 1 •••••. • !_· .. · ' ... · ~ _ · ·-.:·-... ;CJ · Li ..... ~.. . .... ~ ...... · ,~·! .. : 

consulting with 
f b 

. . 
.ocus __ e1ng ons.a1 
procedures.~ tra·ini 
tra .. ic·lk set up··· ·' '· . . ·- · ... '··- ...... ·.... . .. ·. _, .... ·~ 



:II 
:II 

=
=
~ 

=II 
=II 
=II 
:w 
~ 

=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=II 

~ 

qm 

~ 

• • 
~ 

=
~ 

• • • • a 
a 



llllllMMMMM~~~~··••••••••**~M"M~ 

',r· .. :e- c·:a·,s·t: 2···.,0.,:1: -2·····-·2·: ,o·,.-1: '3·· ... 'G'·····:u: · l . :::::. '··- , -~ .. :. i ... , , .... , i . , ·- ... . •... .'..... . . • . . '. '_'I 

1 :p· '1·c··t: u· 1r,e· 11·· ,s·.. f: ···a· .. ·v· .. o·· :r·a .... b: '1,e·, a·· :n· ,d·: i I ! ............. ' ....... : '. .. : . . : : ·-.. . . . - . L •. ~:. L..... . ....... : · ... :... . ' .... - '.. 

r1e·b,01un,d:e,d r,emarlkable with (3,' 

·t .. · ·· 1. ·_·3· '1,6°/ · ore ·~ · ~:t• · , · 'b .· .. ·t···:, ·> ,ng _; .". ___ _, , 70 m .... , . v1s11 .. ors 1.' e we. 
:. · , · ·. · ·d' A.· ·, · · · " · · "t·· · ·f' .··· 2·· ,o· .. '1! ,2··· ·t·· 1h· " ,~ :t d· ,.d• •·· /) an,_·!. u,g:us ... 01. . __ ,,:, . 1·:an 11 .. :_.11' ... 1 

:1period l,ast year. 



~l 

91 

=
:ml 

:rl 

• 
:ml 

~ 

• • 
:m 
w 
:ml 

:ml 

:w 
=Ill 

=-i 

=
~ 

• • 
:al 
=-i 
~ 

=
!:Ill 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 



~ 
' =-

=
=-
=
=
=
:,.. 

~ 

=
=
=
=
=II 

:m 
:w· 

=
=
=
=
=-
• 
!II 

!11 

!II 

=
a 
a 
a 

• a 

• 



MM M ~ ~ ~ ~ M ~MW~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ MW W W~W 

ilt~Y ''Si!AT!S:"nC:,i!lilL :Ffi!!!P-::il!l§i oer~~:Ft. ~1:nz ,1;:!!1!!111•1:~iai!Fi~i 

J~,~~:mi~r ,t.i;f ~tli>:J!iir.~ ~~r,;ji!!~ 'c;jj!rr'!it~~!ii~i!:ll'.l 
C.!i~~t::!~'j' i~!l! !M.o;.;~lt;l !~iii!!,! l:r!1~ 

~~!',imillrn~~!TW."!liill iii~'!~!# t 

~il'~·~ Yf!;]I 

n~~~.i!r 
t!l~iP;i'ir 

::ii:~,~~ ''!'TP 

:::~=I 
::!i!.'!%11 

;.~~~·1 
',K\%1 

~=~I 

ii:~I 
$~ f; ,SE!§ ,2:~~ 
$'! P 1 ~:3.'i!' ,,iLlr.~·;r· 

i~'?~,,.~.54 

'~Lt!'..,·1?·~; 

:r~~!i~:~ 

6,:2:.i.!7 

! 

fi,::i;;:fi 
i,27tl, 

.;~~·:r;,!I 
n~r,I 
·~~%1 

:1 
.~~, ·~;(j!i 

i.iit<'.:.~1 
$c"\~!Ji 

::,~~:·6,~;:~~~1 
-~~;,:·::·~1: 

4;~~ ,:Of~;f 

:6Jf~!li 

:5/J:!f;liEt 
~.!Ji:'.1'1,H~ 

~::ll;!: 

~!:li1~ 

ITC! '~H,~1\1~!~ 

··1'!1'% 
.. ~!Q 

·~:~ p'!:-!t., 

~ P~!iL 

~ f.!~1$.., 

(i1P.O 

r':r~~ 

ill~~~ 

... :2~~ 
:;l'i'i,~ 

·~'~·~. 
;Cf~~! 

14~~~. 

~!!.)!'% 

'!'~'% 

~~% 

~~~~(;. 

·1~~~ 

'1,';f"~J i~V:¥~,~~rn to ·'! Em~~ii:'.~~3i~ ~ 

Oet41 
T~f'i····· 

:~::9 

.51 
~:~ii 

;$:'!!)~ 

~;T4$ 

~'~t.~~ Et Ti~~~~ 
'$Ti·: ;l~{~ .. ~:~£,:;~ 

~·1:,.'J",~ 

f;f~.!f:it~ 

""":hi.ii 
l! 

1~;1 

~:1 
i'i~:'I 
$'1f(] 

~·1 ;.;;r,; ,r;~;; ! ~~·~:,~ f 

~/~ ;)~~rr ! 7(1!:1 



•••~~~~~~~M~~~~~~~~~~~**~~*i~~Ui 

if'' 
;OK LOCAL CAR CLUBS-<Ciff, 

• Guam Region Spo·~~i, 
''perience - only Club of America 

• Drag Racing Associat:' 
Guam 

,[l~history for sports • Guam Drifting Ass!i)~if; 
• Guam Hot Rods 

• Precision Conce<P;~~~~r 

• Toys R Us 



~~~~MM M ~~MM~~~~~*~~~~••~~~~~~~ U-~ 

Saad- Owner 

MANAGEMENT STAFF 

• Marketing Manager 

• Operations Manager 

• Business Development 
Manager 

• Safety and Training 
Manager 



ti ii ii ii ii *I ii '1 .. iii M • • • • • • • • • • • • ii • • ii • ill • II • 

l~nal Staff 

t~~;cc on the job 
. ·· i:.;;portu n ities for 

MY 

<' ?:'~\:<~,~-;:~ 

CONTRIBUflim~ 
Eco>.N··.:o';<~~ .. : 1 '' /1,y:1:~,' 

• Enhancement to i 
track 

• Media buys 

• Support of buy Local 
. 

campaign 

• Enhance the Tourist< 
. 

experience 

• Provide additionaJi:' 
to the Gua111/~~·~';, 
no n-p rofit;.~~i~·~\~>'

1

' .• 



ti it ii M M M M 11 • •• .. . . . . . . II II • • • • -- ' •' - . • . . ; ., •• •: Iii Iii 

11i,i]'c·· . I AL P R OJ E cr··1· ;l:i\. 0:~,. 1'~,~~. :;l\I .. · ·· · \ .. -tl:N~?,f;:·::; 

;::::~'.~:·::>:~·· 
... 
I YEAR ONE I I YEAR TWO I YEAR3 

low Medium High 25% Growth 25% 50% GROWTH 

$ 424,736 . $ 738,816 $ 1,021,696 $ 530,920 $ 923,520 $ 1,277,120 $ 1,234,064 $ 1,408,224 $ .. 
$ 43,150 $ 74,623 $ 102,586 $ 663,650 $ 1,154,400 $ 1,596,400 $ 1,915,680 $ 1,915,680 $ 
$ 381,586 $ 6&4,193 $ 919,110 $ 597,285 $ 1,038,960 $ 1,43&,760 $ 1,574,872 $ l,&61,952 $ 

$ 340,280 $ 340,280 $ 340,lSO $ 375,214 $ 375,214 $ 375,214 $ 375,214 $ 375,214 $ 

$ 245,489 $ 285,141 $ 323,246 $ 300,290 $ 801,777 $ 776,857 $ 675,504 $ 434,795 $ 

Total operating expenses $ 585,769 $ 625,422 $ 663,527 $ 575,504 $ 1,175,990 $ 1,152,071 $ 1,050,718 $ 810,009 $ 

$ (204,l83) $ 38,772 $ 255,584 $ 255,584 $ 255,584 $ 255,584 $ 255,584 $ 255,584 $ 

$ (98,509) $ (98,509) $ (98,509) $ (98,509) $ (98,509) $ (98,509) $ (98,509) $ (98,509) $ 
$ 71,400 $ 71,400 $ 71,400 $ 71,400 $ 71,400 $ 71,400 $ 71,400 $ 71,400 $ 

$ (177,074) $ 65,880 $ 282,&93 $ (107,255) $ 166,630 $ 551,956 $ 618,692 $ 686,281 $ 



~· 
l 

~· 

ii 
ill 

II 

!I . 

• • 
!I 

fl 

'I 

'I 

• • • • • . : 
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • 





Di 

-~ 
M: 

Iii 

11; 

Iii 

Ill 

Ill 

•1 
II! 

Rizk Saad 
122 Redondo De Francisco 
Tamuning GU 96913 

671-687-6800 
rizksaad@americanwatertek.com 

Experience 

President/Managing Owner 
American WaterTek 

August 2011- Present 

Exclusive distributorship for Kinetico water treatment line in Micronesia and non exclusive in 

the Philippines. Providing complete service which includes selling, servicing and repairing water 

softeners, reverse osmosis and water filtration systems for residential and commercial markets. 

Services also include training and warranty support for large commercial accounts. 

Owner 

NuForm Fitness 

May 2004 - Present 

Pilate and fitness studio which focuses on balanced body with reformer equipment. 

Personalized sessions which focus on individual physical conditions and ways to enhance body 

toning. 

Executive Vice President/Chief Operating Officer 
Baldyga Group International, Tuman, Guam 

August 1996 - March 2011 

Responsible for the financial and operations performance of Baldyga International Group ventures, 
which encompasses 18M dollars annual revenue with 200 employees. BIG ventures include; Sandcastle 
Guam & Saipan; a multi-facetted entertainment complex that features a 500 seat capacity Las Vegas 
style dinner theatre, a 1000 person capacity multi-level Night Club. BIG Cruises -Day and night dinner 
cruise. BIG Services- Food services management; specializing in large scale workforce food services. 
BIG Media - which encompasses VTVN (Visitors Television Network), a 5 multilingual tourism 
information and advertising channel, Guam Visitors Channel, Airport Digital media. 

Member of startup team for GameWorks Guam and contracted by LVMH/DFS to oversee management 

of Game Works operations. 

General Manager 
Sandcastle Inc., Tuman, Guam 

August 1992 - August 1996 

Directed the day to day operations of Sandcastle Guam which encompasses a 500 seat dinner theater, 



multilevel night club and the Manhattan Lounge with a total of 240 team members. 

Vice President of Resort Operations 

Enchantment Resort, Sedona Arizona 
May 1990 - February 1992 

Managed the operation of an exclusive 5 diamond, 162 villa tennis resorts. Successfully implemented 
Nick Bolitary tennis institute and Body by Jake Fitness Spa, which became vital attractions to the resort. 

Vice President of Golf Host Inc. 

Tamarron Resort, Durango Colorado 
January 1985 - May 1990 

Responsible for all conference facilities, as well as food and beverage operations of a 450 condominium 
golf and ski resort. Implemented national purchasing program for all Golf Host properties. 

Education 

• Bachelor of Science, Computer Science and Mathematics. Texas 
State University, San Marcos Texas 

• Hospitality course, Cornell University Hotel School 
• Professional courses and certifications, American Hotel and Motel 

Association and the International Food Services Executives 
Association 

Professional and CommunityAffiliations 

• Currently serving as Board of Director for the Guam Visitors Bureau; and the 
Chairman of the Destination Enhancement and Management Committee. 

• Currently serving as Board of Director of the Guam Hotel & Restaurant 
Association. 

• Founder of the Guam Community College Jeff Hill Scholarship Foundation 
• Served on the Northern Marianas Economic Development Council 
• Member of the Vision 2001, Governor Carl Gutierrez's strategic imitative aimed 

at doubling Guam's tourism arrivals. 



I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

I 

' } 

Proposed Lease Terms 

Facility use by Guam Auto Sports (G.A.S.): 

• Drag race course 

• Drag race parking lot 

• Drifting circle/ course 

• Main parking area 

• Building adjacent to the Drag race course - First & second floor space 

• Rest rooms 

• Future attraction: Off wheeling course for Trexx 

Upkeep*: Guam Auto Sports (G.A.S.) will: 

· • Enhance the Drag course entrance with signage and flags, Drag race course, wall graphics, flags, various 
other racing elements. 

• Grounds upkeep to include water blasting, grass cutting, tree trimming, and trash collection generated 
from its own operation and clean the rest room. 

Tenant Improvement*: Guam Auto Sports (G.A.S.) will: 

• Renovate interior space to suit its operation i.e. partitions. 

• Install shade/rain covering over part of the bleachers. 

• Repair of deteriorated chained link fencing around the Drag race course. 

*Prior to any changes G.A.S. will obtain approval from GIR. 

Lease Terms: 

• Non Compete: Guam International raceway will not enter into lease or allow similar business to 
operate or to compete with GAS. 

• Co-operation: G.A.S. operation will not hinder existing races and annual events. 

• Insurance: gas will obtain proper & sufficient insurance and will name Guam International Raceway & 

Government of Guam as second Insured. 

• Covenants: Gas will operate within Guam International Raceway guidelines and regulation. 

• Term: 7 year with option to renew if Guam International race way gets lease extension 

./ Year 1: $1500 /month+ $1000 /month for utilities, water, power, trash pickup, sewer and use of 

the laser sensors . 
./ Year2: $1500 /month+ $1000 /month for utilities, water, power, trash pickup, sewer and use of 

the laser sensors.+ 3% of revenues supported by GRT filing . 
./ Year3: $1500 /month + $1000 / month for utilities, water, power, trash pickup, sewer and use of 

the laser sensors.+ 3% of revenues supported by GRT filing 
./ Year4: $1500 /month+ $1000 /month for utilities, water, power, trash pickup, sewer and use of 

the laser sensors.+ 3% of revenues supported by GRT filing 
./ Years: $1500 /month+ $1000 /month for utilities, water, power, trash pickup, sewer and use of 

the laser sensors.+ 5% of revenues supported by GRT filing 
./ Year6: $1500 /month+ $1000 /month for utilities, water, power, trash pickup, sewer and use of 

the laser sensors.+ 5% of revenues supported by GRT filing 
./ Year7: $1500 /month+ $1000 /month for utilities, water, power, trash pickup, sewer and use of 

the laser sensors.+ 5% of revenues supported by GRT filing 



January 14, 2013 

Monte Mafnas 
Executive Director 
Department of Land Management 
Government of Guam 
590 S. Marine Corps Dr., ITC Bldg. 
Tamuning, Guam 96913 

RE: Letter of Intent to Lease Chamorro Land Trust (CLT) Lands 

Dear Mr. Mafnas: 

For 7 months, our company has gathered information on Guam's housing demands, affordable housing 
programs and on the military buildup to ascertain whether it will be feasible to manufacture Insulating Concrete 
Fonns (ICFs) and to assemble energy efficient windows (double-pane and triple-pane), insulated panel doors 
and mechanical ventilation system on Guam to be used in construction of low-energy efficient homes. We had 
made presentations to Governor Calvo and Lt. Governor Tenorio, the 31st Guam Legislature leadership, Mr. 
Martin Benavente of Guam Housing Corporation, GHURA, GEDA, Guam Energy Office, Mr. Joe Diego of 
USDA, SBA, Guam Contractors Association President, Guam Trades Academy, GCC, UOG, and to the Guam 
Contractors License Board Executive Director. We also participated in the 2012 Affordable Housing Expo and 
the UOG 2012 Career in Energy Efficient Expo. Our findings and feedback from our presentations encouraged 
us to pursue our business intent for Guam. 

On October 22, 2012, JMD Global Micronesia Corporation was incorporated. On December 10, 2012, JMD 
Global Micronesia Corporation obtained its Contractor's License with classification A, B, C13 & C37. The 
mission of JMD Global Micronesia Corporation is to build a low-energy efficient model house, to engage in 
affordable housing development projects, to facilitate the establishment of a manufacturing and assembling 
plants, and to provide OJT to local workforce in ICF construction. 

The manufacturing and assembling plants will require about 3 - 5 acres of land with available off-site 
infrastructure such as power, water, and sewer within proximity. The estimated investment is about $10 Million 
which will provide local employment of about 200-300 workers at 100% operation. The manufactured and 
assembled products can also be Guam's export products to other regions such as to the CNMI, FSM, Republic 
of the Marshall, Republic of Palau, and as far as Hawaii and the Philippines. We also planned to build our 
operation offices adjacent to the model house, therefore, about 3,000 square meters ofland is needed. Six (6) 
containers already arrived and are still at the seaport, containing ICFs and tools to immediately commence 
construction of the model home and our operation offices. 

We have been searching for suitable land to construct the model house, operation offices, and for the 
manufacturing & assembling plants but we have not found any yet. We have been informed that CLT may have 
available lands for lease that may be suitable for our purpose. For this reason, on behalf of our company board 
members, I humbly submit our Letter of Intent expressing our interest to lease CLT lands for our above stated 
purposes. Since our containers are already at the seaport, we would like to lease available CLT lands as staging 
area for our containers and at the same will be the site for the manufacturing and assembling plants. 

P.O. Box 377, Hagatna, Guam 96932 • Tel.#: 987-4894 I 477-4894 • Email: jmdisorast@gmail.com 



Page 2 

We appreciate your assistance to provide us with your information package to include requirement checklist and 
application for leasing CLT lands. 

Si Yu'os ma'ase and we look forward for your favorable consideration of our Letter of Intent. Should there be 
any questions, I may be contacted directly by dialing 670-287-0494 or via email at jmdisorast@gmail.com. 

Corp rate Secretary/Treasu~r 
Certi ed Building Analyst Profes ·onal/ nergy Auditor 
Building Professional Institute ID #::i 3208 
Expiration Date: 09/21/15 

XC: Jaeyong "Joseph" Kim, Corporate President 
Jaejun Kim, Corporate Vice President 
J1\.1D Global Co., Ltd. (Korea Office) 
File 

Enclosures: 
1. Contractor's License 
2. Products Brochure 

P.O. Box 377, Hagatna, Guam 96932 • Tel.#: 987-4894 I 477-4894 • Email: jmdisorast@gmail.com 



I• 

1111• 

II~·· 'tl5 11111111111111111 11111111111111 

t' D.:·:;H:lllUI I 1111:BA~1111 
Q AN!11111~. 

011~1lt.tAIRMAN 11111111111111111 
•iliill ~I 1111 

11
1111111 
1111111111111 1111111111111111· 

11111111111111111 :!!!!!, 1111111111111111' 

;;;:11111111111 

1
11111111 

11111111111111 

1
111111111111 

111111111111 1 

111
1111·

1
1111 

i 1111111111' 

•lllifjli'll!!I! 
·11111,,;! 

' Ii ! 11111111 ! 111 
1.111 

111
1111111111111 

I i11•11ll 

·1111111111111111 
'·llililllllll 11

111i1111111111 1111111111111111 
111111 1111!1 

1 1111~1 1·1111· 
111111111111111111

111111
1111111 1111111111111111 

1111111 

•%:11111 
111k·· 

1

11111'• 

1l11111il!I, 

11
111111111111 

·I 11111111;1-

lllll• ·111'1' 
ll1ij1111111ll' 



Native American Direct Loan Program 

I. Program Title Native American Direct Loan Program 
2. Program Benefits (ie; 100% financing, no payment during construction, and others) Minimal closing 
fees: no escrow fee, no points, no origination fee. Servicing retained in Hawaii. No prepayment penalty. 
3. Maximum Loan $625,500 
4. What are the Debt to income ratios? 41 % 
5. What minimum FICO scores are required? Not applicable - VA does not look at FICO scores. 
6. Other than land,infrastructure and vertical cost can loan include other items such solar or wind energy for each 
home. Energy efficiency improvements up to $6,000 may be added to the loan. 
7. Does the I 0 month rule apply in small debts? Under Freddie Mac any loan that has a pay off schedule below I 0 
months will not be included in the debt ratio All debts may impact an applicant's ability repay the 
loan. Debts which can be paid off in 10 months or less must be looked at on a case by case basis. 
8. If there is equity in the purchase can small loans be included to consolidate with purchase to improve debt ratio? 
Under Freddie Mac debts cannot be included in financing the home. No. The loan is limited to the purchase 
price/actual cost of construction or the reasonable value, whichever is less. 
9. Can closing cost be included in the purchase? No. Except for the VA funding fee, closing costs cannot 
be included in the loan. 
10. Can the potential Homeowner receive down payment grants to lower its final financing cost? Grants and 
gifts for downpayment/closing costs are allowed. 

They may be other questions while we build the "Frequently ask Questions" we will start with these for now. I look 
forward in the creations on the FAQ and Fact sheet. 



Since 1992, the Nafrve Arnericnn Vclernn Dfrcd Loan (NADL) program prodded eligible Native 

American Veterans and their spouses the opportu11it.y to use their Dl·partmcnt ofVeternris Affairs (VA) 

home loan guaranty benefit on Federal trust lnnd. Prior to the <.T<:~ation of this program. Nath·c 
Ameriean Vt~terans eould use this benefit only if a mo1tgage lender \YHS willing to n1ah: a VA home loan 

on Federal trust land. 

By statute, before VA may rmike a loan to any Native /\1nc>rican Veteran, tlw Veteran's tribal or other 

sovereign governing body rrrnst enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 1.vith VA. Native 

Ameriean Veterans who are eligible for VA home loan benefits and whosl' sovereign governments have 

signed an MOU, may then apply directly to VA for a loan to purchase, build, or improve a home located 
on Federal trust land. They may also refinance a direct Joan already made under this program to lmvcr 
their inte1·est rate. Tf the property is not located on Federal trust land, the Veteran can use the VA 

Home Loan program. 

Direct loans made under this program an: indexed to the rnnventiona1 mortgage limits set arinuallyhy 
Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae. Please visil http://ww\v.bencfits.va.gov/homeloans/loan _ _limits.asp to 
see the current list ofloan limits and current interest rates for NADLs. Jntcrnst rates for louns mach~ 

under this program have, historically, trended lmver than those '1\'<lilablc to Veterans elsewhere. 

VA has eight Regional Loan Centers (RLCs) and an office in Honolulu. Plcnse contact tbe RLC in your area of 

jurisdiction. You ean locate your RLC of jurisdiction at http://w,vw.bcnefits.va.goY/homeloans/rkwcb.asp. 

For More Information. Call Toll-Free i-800-827-JOOO or Visit Our Web Site at 

http://www.be11efits.va.gm·/l1omcloans. 

Dls:t1t"JLii"Je~ det!'!rrnmed LN VA to fY--.> u.>t:eited k: ·;rxirmif!tw;. :t!rvKe::11r lead ti.~ m-:::-n\h!y :Y..~n·t.:f.J-'1.abi1.~ c;;;rnix':?T.:,;;t;;,;ri, •!n;<.~Hment1n t"lv~ 

VAhe-ilithc.are syi;tern, ~ 10-pcint h;nng pl~'.:fer'.•no.~ for fr:tk:ral t=.rnpi~rr·nw.1)t dn1.i c;tt~erimpnrtan!. bi~r:efi!::'. .. <:\sit vc.1..H V;\ 

representestr.-e er Veter ans Ser-1:ce Orgam<c:Jhen rt:prr.?Sentative ;_)b<JUt ['1,<;.,)b;i\ty Corr:vc-rE;otK>n, P1.:!nsk.ir1. Health Car~':. C.<Jr-egt'-.'ef 

Prc,:;re1rn, C;m~erSen.1il.::es. Eth!t::)hor.~'ll ;~~:;t4nce. tk.11;¥; t;;.·m Gu:11<mtv, !n::.1 JJ~mr'f· ::ind/or D-e-ptndent~: ar:d :.:ur•1l\Pr:: [1{-nL·til~. 



EMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 
THE TERRITORY OF GUAM 

, AND 
TiiE SECRET. ',OF VETERANS AFFAIRS, AN OFFICER OF THE UNITED STATES 

RELATING TO THE PRO ESSING, UNDERWRITING, AND SERVICING OF VA DIRECT fIOME LOANS 
FOR ELI IBLE PACIFIC ISLANDER GUAM CHAMORRO VETERANS 

Ii 
I. PURPOSE I ~ 

This Mtmora11dum tMOU) dt}ifll5 /li.e basie nspons1bi/i fs uf. lhz S";-rdary of VtUnm.s Affairs and /lit Tcm·tary of Gunm. VA Ms procudtd lo imp/.rn!J!'n/ a Nnlfvt Amm·am Ve/mm Dirrcl Lo:m Pilot 
Progniru (Program) Jo q111dlfitd Guam Podfir: Isl.and wlmm( ridtr Public Urw 102-54~ of Oclobcr 28, 199.2, Tille JS U,5, Co-ofr,§§ J761-3!64. 111.t GWJm Hol./.$ing CorJxi:utlon (G.HC) hns agr~ la rwlsl YA 
1'11 iinpfm1011i11g tliil Pito1 Progn1m, iu fww 1/1t 0111marro ~ TrUJt CommWi'an (Cl.TC} 011d l/i.r G11om Tmftor!JJI OfJict o/VctrratJJ Affu1rs. 7711GHC1md Jilt CLTC will ddrrmuu who qunlifics os a Padfic 
Island borrou.ra and tht Cl.TC witt dtkrmint w/111/ GHC 011; ~TC proptrlirs fn Guam qwrlify us C/wmorru Umd Tnul Ac/ propati,s. 

II. EFFECflVE: DATE OFAGREEME!fl ! \ 
T11is l\gmmml iJ t}/ectiix 11po11 Hit drilt lnsl J{g11rd by fl 'Jigmi/oritS njltr rtvlw 011d 11pprowl 1Jy VA. 

Ill. CONSIDEW.TION , , 
l11 ronsidmlioll of ll1t 11m11iscs and ollu:r good and wlu11 It ca11sidtrulio11, l/u parliu do ogm 01111 tslub/isli ns follow$ o pilol pro~r11n1 of dim:l lion it loalU' for q1wlijitd Pacific I:l.11t1d vcltraru on dlglblt lrwl 

la1ul.s ill Gunm, o.1 dtfi11.td Ir; 48 U.S. Codt, §J4.21, llu Org110ii1Act of Cuam, os 11n1mdtd, I/it Cluunorro I.Aud Trusl Ml, 2l GCA CJ14p/tr 75. §75101 tl serr·• and 1995 rq11filliun:s thutfort, as intrTP!!-ttd by I/Lt 
Cowmn1t11I ofG11an1, (stt /111gd Santos om/ /lit Cl1t1morro t;J lion 11s. /11upl1 F. (\do, Guunr Suptrlur Courl, UrJt' No. S.P. 0083·92 (199J), and '1y Tillt 38 U.S. Codt, §376~ 11nd Tiflt 38, CFR, §§ 36ASOJ and 
J6.f527. -

IV. l\CRC:EMC/lfT i < 1 
A. VA will n1aktdirrcl /wtm loa11s nwiMltfar qunlifi.t ;Pacific /sl1111dtr vdrra11s 011 di£rbft lrus/ lauds ta tJu t:rlt11/fi111ds art approprfoltd and ,ulJjtcl lo suc11 lmns a11d cimdill'om ni; mny bt ulDb/Wud 

~riS~~/~,~~~1:~t~=:;.~:%~H!!0;·,~~7~:::,~~;c~fo:/,1~1:1;~t:~·~1~1~~u;~~::;;a~~1~1~1~~':;;,':;::~0;;,.~if;!1;,,~;~;:, 1;;;~ru:: 1~:;i;;~~;;i::~s~;~;;:~w~7~~1{ :i::t;;;·c~Ac~;'~{~~di;7,~~ 
ri/Gu.am Offices lo prrfomt Coan closings, CDl!Slnlction irupifil ,us, ,c_on1plia1!pt i1uptc!ions, loo11 pramsi11g a11d propuly nia11agm1.mf, Ou wltran may JXJY o Ju of up to S300 to GHC or ollitr entity ptrfom1i11g 
I/ifs work. VA wilt ordtr appraisals and complillncc fnsptc/f~ , 111rougl1 VA appraiscfs an Gw:1m. Appraisal srrvim wifl bt paid by tklemu or bcitfidD.r(rs ll5if1.8 only VA ccrlf}itd orn.an1rrl 11fpr11i:'m °" Gwm, 
Fm and c1nts-will bl}i11.D.lly tU1cm1/ncd in I/it sofc discull'onJi:;f,Vt\ iii acrori!Dncr wilh s/a/ulary or o//~r ndts 011d guidtlim,. Si11gltfan1ily, digibU dupft:r, Vl\~pPtt1c:ia:i rortdominium, subd1ulsla11, zero fol tint, 
or µ1.tumtd 1mil comnmnitirs or ollia ~of nsidmlial dwt/11ng, t:rc/uding comniaciof propalics, may I.it uliliud fordirtcl harm looru, 111 lh: diKTetion of Vii, if mlifiW 4$ llpotl Ch.ant'777'D InncU for 0111morros 
u d(ji11cJ liy Liw 1111d by lli.c Go1JC:m/ll('lll ufCllllm, Survillin~nirnur:s af L'C'terans wlw haw olslafmd cllgibi/ity far VI\ hDnie loon gUllranly t>cnejits m11y apply/ordirtct loons. fl is 1md.cntood llial a rpo!l5t of a 
Clt11ntorro ucJcrA11ni:i'J1101 "'J marrioRt a/ant csfablis/1 c/iglbill )or lltt Pilot Provam. Al fml Ollt party lo a VA dirtel /0011 nmsl ~a q1~/ifi(d t1e/mm Clwnwrra;11U4lificd 111111-odrmni;and non·Olll'mcrror may 
sig11 U' CO"'JWUtrS 011 morlgngon if pmnilltd lo do so Uy c~ : 

O. 111.r. T(rrilory of Guanl l1trd1y c~tifitl Jlial it Ji.as cS blishtd 1l.a1J.dards,fomi.s, rqiorts ond proctdurrs 11141 ruu/I iii lfit contvyarirt of a valid 1111d mtanirrgful Tta:uho/d or ft~ i11/m:Jl in rail property by 
11 Pacifil• ldnndtrwltran or bmrjiciitry borrowtr(•} lo Vt'\ GS\~:11rily for /lie VAdirtcl home loan, focluding wlid p~d11nsfor II~ pmucrofsule,furccW,u1t: wll/10ul mkrp.pfiun. urane ricl/onjanlldcjldotcy Um
il.alio1U upon ~iJfcdera/ VA ln/msls, and a~o inr:fuding abf4 n~ng ya/id wn/awful dc111intr OT' allier proctdurts lo ncurt llll ponmlDri of s.qid inltrcsl1/or rt11J.lc of I/Lt Jot ar dwtlling or bath, a:i providtd,lr; /td-

~a~~~~ 1~:h:s1!:~r;J C!'~~~~e%J:~~Af ~1::11:~~~ {mts"uv;/~~:f :~1~:s~~t~~t ~~rg;:,,1::1!1~J~1~1~~':!~: /~,~~;'~~+~J'!J/~ ~":,~~7{,~l~ra;:::,~?SRi/Z~i;fc,~u:e~ I~= ,a;,,~{~/j~!~::~ 
matt or last of ddi11qr1ml loD1i.s1 sa long llS VI\ iJ gi~n a lim Iy a1ui ocnm1/c qixotmling of !lit promds vf //tt dirtel loa11 monies af!tcfrd. 

C. Tiic Tmilory of Gunm also crr/ifia lllnl it /IJlt ulab /ll1td //IJll a ltast/1.Dlt! or ft1 mor/gagt, duty rerordM a:s rrqwrcd by Cunm /QUJ/JI 1111! G1111m Dcp11rlni1.11l of I.Arid Mrmugrn1cnt, Office ufllit Rtcordcr, 
1uii/1oul ro.JI or Ju lo VA, :s/~l/ l111w prion'ly O'\!C'Tany and all ~il!(s), autss111t11l.s, judgmtn/J1 01mmu11i1y prupaly f11ftrt.s/S, UCC stcuruy intmsls, tquiLab/t mortgagc3, fiook~up fttJ, partilions, party u.ul/ mcum• 
bnmccs, ca.stmrnlS, local lll:rN, 'horl lrrm least inlmsl.s, """If rs' lims, or posstssory or olhtr odutrse in/msfs no/ ptrftcled al llll limt of such rtcordillg 1111d any and all substqu.cnl litll" nr clnimo; n~ Jirunirlnl. liy 
Law, i : 

D. 'l1it Tt'TT!lory of C!Lllm, upon Vl\'s wrilfr:u or ollioi ~lice of dtfou/tfor mart 111111111i11tly (90) days by Ilic liomiu.1t1(s) 111tdtr 11 ltasdiold or ftt 'impfr n1orlgag1, s.)141/ auist and co1m:;d borrawa(s) and 
lau(ully amlrrolt. lht loon nndfortc/o3t by potU<r of salt or ,I c 0111ctll.a1io11, rtfu11d, ttllmOTtiu, or cure or 1trmi1wlt //U!' I0111111' pcrmilfcd "'J Fcdtrol law, u;xmfi~I giuing 11olit't fo \!,;\ fo wn'cing of fnlmt lo 

~/~J~o;c:': :;'~~~ •;i;:;~i;:i a~1;,;;;~":,f,,0Zf,;:~~l~~1~~ l~~ ~~:i;:~~lt;';~/ ~l~;~~Jjo~:S~ l~s"::11:~1::f;,~~~~;t~'.::r~1. law, 11nd in Wit~ U.S. COOt, Chnpla Jl, u amt11dtd, 11nd 1/111111/J provisions 
. l l 

a~lt ,;~tty ~~t;:r1:,~ 1%~/::;:s'~~~:~ ~~;~ ~~1i~f;~~1fi% ~ijk~~~i~11~~d ~:1~S~~ri11p~~~:e'.r;:,~s1:~/.0o~J:;;:~ ~;~1:~~,~~; ~~:~1;~/~;~ ~~~~1~:!'i1~~:~;~"~~~::~i1~ ~:,,r~t~~f:~~1/;~~;:~~'/f,:; 
Vl\dimtJwnitfuun. I ! . 

F. 11it Tcrrilory n/G1JJ1111will11liliu morlgngr limi D(1 1othrr forrnt occrpt11blt lo VA/or dirtd h.on1t loauJ. EDc/11111d ~ry cUlfl'b/t ~iudificd tl'l:lcrau will nmi.ry Ilic alm>i: iltscrl~d inlr.m:l lo fl~ Sterclary 
of Vtltran.1 Affairs byo11 appraprlo~ftdcml morlSJ'ge ar com r;ucli'm Lo.:tu and prumWury 11ottforn h1fer m.orlgogt fm1nm1t111, os security fur flit loa111 lu accardanct wil/1 JB U.S. Codt §§ 37G].J764. VA will 
ca/Itel appl(01bfc VAf11ndlng/t~ by includillS llitm in loan I w11111s, orcollecltd separately. . 

G. Tiii! Territory a/Guam will culify Jri VA1111mc,soff, J llfitdVdtmnJ on GliC 1.1XJfl!11g /fJfJ with priority for t/fg1blt lrusl Lindsfram CLTC lists or CDmbimJ CHC/CLTC tlsl.s. 

H. 111(' Ttm'tary ofG1111m 1111d ai.ch w:ftrvn who obta1r. la loan from VA under this 11srcrmt11/ will pmmt VA, ii$ agw1s, CD/1/ruclorl, in1ptclotl, or tmployu:s, and GHCand Gwcrnmn1l a/Guam agt11/s, 
CD/Urllrlorl'1 fm]'C'IOrl, or tniploym lo ml~ upon lht /amt YIL wleran/or tli.c p14tpoSt oj c11rrying oul such aclions os l/u. Sccrttary and/~r 111.t TaTilary Pf G1111111 d11.umlncs iJ rim•i.£4'}' lo monitor, lnsptd or 
®/1.1.111~ conipllauct wil/1111.t loan or any asptc/J of purcha•~{ ns/ructlon, improu.mitnlr or ollur 11clio11, lntl1.1ding Powtr of ui/t fouclasuN (su 18 Cu.om Cede Annolalul (GCA) §36113), or dn:d/lnut. ln lieu a/ 
fom:losurc, rt1m1orlizalicm, rtfun.d, ct.UY, compromiie, or J. ' { 1g. E:utnls of bankruptcy, gan11'sl1mwt, Um ndion, casually loss, $lorm darttDgc, ar 11111.awful dtLaintraclion affecting /llt procads of lite loori will 
a/fo 111/ar11 /or miry liy flit TuTilary and/or VA. . , 

L The Ttrri1ory of Guam will la tfic mazimum ulc1 I , rn'/Jft: aSJ/sl Vii in its ef!om 10 ma11agt lh/s Program 111 a pl'Udtlll aud cost rffcctlvt //ta/mer, i11c111.di11g but nor limited lo milting VA infi11iling 
q11a/ifi~d subllilult purc1111srr1 if I/Lt i11itial borrawerii) is di~., Ir ar u11willi1_1s lo fitlfill hiJ or htr 0Ulig11lion:s undtr lnw, and i11 a~sudug l.h.ol marlgaf,n: and ol/ic.r lcga. I inslnJmt11/s art pro~.'.JY anrl linrt,ly rrrord
td for VI\ wilhDul rom1eyancc ar other /us ar costs or'/ua~. ill assun'ug lkal lhi't Program ii O/Hrrlltd in a rnponsiblt a11d pr111fo11 nianrur. rJ VA dr/rrmin,, IMI ils 1mJi'tl11g4ftJ_r/1 tzrt wror.1ccas/wi a11d 
def au// conliuut.s: or rr-<1ct111s, llitn VA may 110/ify lht;T~ijo .of Guam la htgir1 poWtr of µJ1 fo1cc10J1lrt and/or roicli'o11·tjtclu1mt/1Jt1lawful dtl~incr or o/lirT proctdurn lo mncdy .dtjault ~111ffor,tvronsful or 
advent possnsio11. VA s11bsL!y of aflon_1rys~f~t1 i~ sud! ~S' •'! llmiltd by law1 ~s~e JB Cm §J6.4J1J). Tl1t Terrilory ofGUllm Ulil/ Jiawa: rwo11ablt llmt sci by.VA Jo comp/ti~ .u11i'e: if. Iwu.~r,'.J/LtTtrritory 
vf G111m1i;S11Jt.1Mc la ccnnplt:lt Jaid prou.durcs In a ~so~~l. (i11ta11d,J1rudm,t n1111111tr, VA may ill ifs salt discrtfio11 ltmparon'ly or pm1i.11t11//y 1uspcnd lhi'J Progr'11nt by writlcn nolici lo llll'. Turilary of Guam 
lo pll11CCI VA'J i11/trC"SIS and tkt sta11110ry p11_rposl:s of tlii Pr, flll: '71!.t Tcrn'lory 1111d VA n1t1y nu.II or offer slllltl·ltnn ltnm 011 proptrl(cs rrl11rmrl lo VA willwuf rrs11rd to lln1its upon poue:;.s{an of pnrptrl~ try 
oll1tr 1/~11 C/1t1111arros or ~tcra11s, l/prn11ilttd by G_1111m /a 7d GHOCLTC 

/. VI\ agrut lf1a/ f~zard i11Jurom:t mtdi11g Guam ' •11d VA rtjufrtmtrrl• 11uu1 ~ pro11idrd by lht borroWtT(,) 011 or fx/rm dosing, If arJai/p/Jfc. f.arllUlwi'.:r, 11,1i11d1 or allr.cr cnsua/ty insurtmc~ romogt 
is tncoump by VA if nol cos/ prol1llriliw. Floo.:I i1Uuro11or r: iht l't''ohLr ntd1 if ouoil.:Jblt. 

K. VA agrm lodou l}l /0011 and limrlyprovldt Ille~ I ilory o/Ct41ru with. 01pio a/ appraprialt loun doC1.1mtt1l3. Direct /1011/e /001u 11111y ~ n111dc by VA i11 lh.t higlt cosl art11 a/ Gunmfor up In .S:l.20000 
for t•dt lw:n1 i11 accort:Gincc tlril/1 38 U.S.C. §3762. , I: , . . _ ' 

. L n~ Territory of Guam agrtu lllD.t If 11.lrnst W!tl~· nctled btcalLJf of an uncured dtfou/t, I/it GHC will give VI\ fumly at.loon ct U1r1tltn 1101/c:e of sud1 pmding audJor romp/1/td cot1ccll.ali'on, logdl11:r 
wrt/1afull11ci:wnUng of dfrrcl IOQn monln tifftr:ttd. 

. M. Tiie Tt;rflory of_GllD.MI w/1111pplyo11ycolltcl~!.~ , f.Jii-sl la ~n inlcmt of tl1c VA loan, ntxl la inltttsl as ollowrd by Guanr law, and Lui to ony prindpal dut. VA agrttJ Ilia! I/rt: Tcm'lory of Gu 11m 
IS no/ gW1tll11le(mg or ob/1gatrd lo pay VA/or any dcficim 111dt111n1ly !Ubl 111 IN. anlllu11t colltcltd 011/ortclos1Jrr ,alt ur rUD/~. \~Jw wai~r 11nd compronii5t pTT1Ccdum fer such debt' of borroll."!T{s} ajlrr 
/urrcla~urt lhnt n111y be' applied lo prottd wltNn& 1md VA·:: ' I 

N. Titt GHC asrrcs lo limtly nolify VA of any loan·/ n.sfcrs n112dt by dm/11, dU11bi/ity, diJJOrct, /rust ngrtcn1tn/, 11gncn1tnt of Sillt, OOnkruplcy, farfcilurt for llltg111 activity or conucyaMct purp<xt.s Alf 
lru11s/ers will L't' in 1ecordancc wi/11 VI\ anumplicn lmrlta/' ' .~rrquirlng cv11Spicuu11.s 11u/fct o/rncl1 /in1ilnlio11s 011 I/it fact of mor/gagt a11d 110/cfonru. (Sc~ JB CFR §36.45081. ' · 

0, VA 1111d lh1 TcrriJary.of Guam 11gru l/UJJ l!1U agrt; ~t11t wi/J.bt lil>crnlly ~mlrutd an.ti fmplcntc~led.10 t:J1edflioll51y protut llll ~·nlmsts of /11.r. parJics as Wt/I a.s to assis/ qunlifitd and digilslt p11cific 
lsl.a_11Jrr G1wm tkltmn!f 011 tl1g1bft lni.sl /01rd la oblam dtctnf, ift, samfary, and kab1/obfc dwtl/mgs, No/11111s 1111/115 pnragraµ/1 hawroa. will~ dtancd lo canstilr.111 o U.'Orrau/y by VI\ lo ""Y pury a:s to 11~ can~ 
dll1011 uf llll.V prapuly. . j [ 

P. VI\ llgrtn loamy ou/ a11 011trmc/1 progrnm ID mf~r r artd tdUCJl/( Guam t1eleruns of l/m program 011d la olfu VA lroi11i11gfar GHC ltclinlciaus lo 1/1( Cl'/t/I/ /1111di11g is auai/ablt lo VA. 

Q. VI\ rumxs fht ngf1l lo Sll5pmd or lcn11i11olt lhi' f' ~t prozram ill ils salt discretion lo prultc/ 1/11. i11lmsfj; t:J/ lht U.S. Gat>tntmcnJ. 

R. 111/s VI\ prvgrrmi mwlws loans aud not gra11ts. \ : 

S. TI1ls a_rntmmt niay bt ammdt.d by writ/en nmno~ ~dum sifY1td ITy I/It pt'lr/i,.~. 

l R£0F, llit parllts /itre1r1 lwtk s gtud lf11s ugrmnz11/ as Ju/lows 

RS: RY OF VETERANS AFFAl~S 
·I 

Dalt: _S-:_-_b_-~9'--"-2 __ 

Officr ufTcmtory a/Guam Dqinrtml!1ll u/ Vtltra11s Affairs 

Dy /y:;;>pm !JZ?'~ Dolt: ~/17-


